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Wagar, Blair GTH

“rom; Wagar, Blair GTH

dent: January 9, 2014 4:06 PM

To: Hobbs, John JU

Ce: Richards, Bryan GTH

Subject: RE: Urgent - Land Acquisition 16(1)
Thainks John,

22(a)(b)

Thanks,

Blalr

From: Hobbs, John JU

Sent: January 9, 2014 2:00 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Cc: Richards; Bryan GTH

Subject: RE: Urgent - Land Acquisition 16(1)

22(a)b)(c)

John R. Hobbs, Q.C.

Crown Counsel

Government of Saskatchewan

Civil Law, Ministry of Justice

900-1874 Scarth St., Regina, Sk. S4P 4B3
Tel: 306 787-1380 / Fax: 306 787-0581

Email: john.hobbs@ gov.sk.ca

From: Wagar, Blair GTH
Sent: Tuesday, January 07, 2014 4:17 PM
To: Hobbs, John JU



Cc: Richards, Bryan GTH
Subject: Urgent - Land Acquisition 16(1)
Importance: High

Hi John,
22(a)(b)(c)
Thanks,

Blair

BLAIR WAGAR

Chief Operating Officer

GLOBAL TRAMSPORTATION HUB
350- 1777 Victorla Avenue

REGINASK $4P 4K5

P: 306.798.4602 C:306.539.2778

F: 306.798.4600

www.theath.com
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OFFER TO PURCHASE — FARMLAND

The Global Transportation Hub Authority (hereinafter “GTHA>)

Address: 305-1777 Victoria Avenue, Regina, Saskatchewan, c/o Blair Wagar Phone: 306-787- 4842 Fax:
306-798-4600

(called the Purchaser), having inspected the real property, hereinafter described, offer to purchase from

101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd. c/o Anthony Marquart
Address: 116 Albert Street, Regina, Saskatchewan, Phone: 29(1) Fax:
Cell: 29(1)

(hereinafter the “Vendor™), the following described Property:

Surface Parcel #165025414
_ Reference Land Description: NW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 1 (approx. 116.86 acres)

Surface Parcel #166005862
Reference Land Description: SW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 2 (approx. 87.40 acres)

(MINERALS NOT INCLUDED)

free and clear of all encumbrances, except as set out in Schedule “A” — Permitted Encumbrances, for the
sum of $21,038,780.00 Dollars ($103,000.00 per acre) to be paid as follows:

$38,780.00 to the office of McKercher LLP, as a deposit to be held pending completion or other
termination of this agreement and to be credited on account of the purchase price on
closing, and the sum of

$21,000,000.00 to be paid to the office of McKercher LLP at their request and to be credited on account of
the purchase price on closing.

THIS OFFER IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

1. This transaction of purchase and sale is to be completed on or before February 14, 2014, (called the
adjustment date) and subject to payment of the full purchase price, vacant possession will be given to the
Purchaser on that date. In the event the full purchase price is not so paid and the Vendor gives possession
to the Purchaser, the Purchaser will pay interest at the rate of 5% per annum on any portion of the
purchase price not so paid from the date of possession until payment.

2. The Vendor will pay all real property taxes assessed against the Property and relating to the period
ending December 3 1st, 2013,

3.  The Vendor will pay for the preparation of the Transfer of Title and the Purchaser will pay for the
registration of the Transfer under the Land Titles Act.

4, The Purchaser warrants that he is registered under Division V, Subdivision d of The Act to amend
the Excise Tax Act (Goods and Services Tax Legislation) and that the Purchaser's Goods and Seivices Tax
registration number is 107864258 . The Purchaser undertakes to complete and file all necessary forms
with Canada Customs and Revenue Agency, regarding GST and agrees to indemnify and save harmless
the Vendor for the payment of GST.

5.  This offer is made conditional on the Purchaser obtaining approval for a loan of the least

G\CommontFreedom of InformalionGTH (42-50)-16G - GeofT Leo May 26, 2016MGTH 47-16G Geolf Leo_May 26 2016\0riginal Docomenis'2 - Offer to Purchase -
Farmland from 101225232 Sask Ltd. (R1067767).doc - 10:39 AM / August 9, 2016
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$21,000,000.00 on the security of the property. The Purchaser shall have until February 3, 2014 to obtain
such approval or to obtain alternate financing after which date the Vendor may terminate this agreement if
such approval or alternate financing has not been obtained. Upon such termination or upon production by
the Purchaser of a refusal in writing by a lending institute to approve such a loan the deposit shall be
forthwith returned to the Purchaser and this Agreement shall be void, and the Purchaser shall have no
interest in the property.

6.  This offer is made conditional, subject to the following conditions:
(a) The GTHA obtaining an Order in Council for the purchase;

(b) This offer is subject to the Purchaser, at their sole discretion, being fully satisfied with the Title
to the lands, the physical attributes of the Property including any easements and the
environmental status of the Property;

{c) If the Purchaser deems it necessary to conduct environmental testing or inspection to satisfy
itself as to the environmental condition of the property, the Vendor shall provide reasonable
access to the Property for the purpose of such investigation.

(d) The Purchaser shall remove all conditions on or before February 3, 2014.
7. The following personal property is included in the sale: N/A

8.  The Vendor warrants to the Purchaser that the Vendor has not used or permitted the use of the
Property, either now or at any time in the past, for:

(1) the storage and/or dumping of;
(2) as a landfill or waste disposal site of;

any deleterious or hazardous substances, nor is the Vendor aware of any deleterious or hazardous
substances migrating onto the Property from adjoining properties, and the Vendor has at all times
complied with existing environmental laws or regulations, or the terms of any permits or licenses, and has
not or is not currently incurring liability pursuant to the foregoing laws and regulations. The Vendor is not
now or is subject to any remedial order or subject to any concluded, ongoing or pending enforcement
actions or investigations uider any provincial or federal legislation.

The Vendor further warrants that it shall indemnify and save harmless the Purchaser from any claims or
actions of any kind or nature arising from the Vendot’s act or omission or failure to comply with any
environmental law or regulation.

9, Both parties agree to execute promptly, when prepared, any documents required to complete this
transaction,

10. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

11.  This offer is irrevocable by the Purchaser and open to acceptance by the Vendot up to 12:00 noon
on December 24, 2013, and if accepted within that period or before revocation shall constitute a binding
contract of purchase and sale.

12. If this offer is not accepted, the entire deposit, will be refunded to the Purchaser. If this offer is
accepted and the Purchaser fails to comply with any of the terms, the deposit will be forfeited to the
Vendor and this Agreement will be void at the Vendor's option and the Purchaser will have no more
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interest in the property.

13.  This Agreement is binding on the heirs, executors, administrators, or successors of the Vendor and
Purchaser.

14,  The parties agree that in order to facilitate the execution of this Agreement, faxed signatures shall
be deemed to be valid signatures.

I15. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Saskatchewan.

16. It is understood and agreed that there are no other representations, warranties, guarantees, promises
or agreements other than those containing in this Agreement.

17. This Agreement may be executed (by facsimile or otherwise) in any number of counterparts, each of
which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparis shall together constitute but
one and the same instrument.

SIGNED by the Purchaser on December 23, 2013,

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB AUTHORITY

(seal)
Per:
Blair Wagar

ACCEPTANCE

I hereby accept this offer with all conditions contained therein and 1 certify that [ am not a non-resident as
defined by the Income Tax Act.

SIGNED by the Vendor on December _ ,2013.

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN L.TD,

{seal)
Per:

Purchaser’s Solicitor; David J. BishoP -~ McKercher LLP
1]

Address: 500 — 2220 12" Ave., Regina, SK S4P 0M8
Phone #: (306) 565-6500

Fax #: (306) 565-6565

Vendor’s Solicitor:

Address:

Phone #:

Fax #:
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Schedule “A” — Permitted Encumbrances

As to Surface Parcel #165025414:
Interest Register #101206224 — CNV Easement registered August 29, 1978 in favour of Transgas l.imited

Interest Register #101206235 — CNV Easement registered Octaber 5, 1979 in favour of Kinder Morgan
Cochin ULC

Interest Register #116678706 — Public Utility Easement registered August 16, 2010 in favour of Petroleum
Transmission Company :

Interest Register #1 17048078 — Pipelines Act — Easement registered December 22, 2010 in favour of
Kinder Morgan Cochin ULC

Interest Register #117140442 — Public Utility Easement registered February 7, 2011 in favour of
Petroleum Transmission Company

As to Surface Parcel #166005862:

Interest Register #101206246 — CNV Easement registered August 29, 1978 in favour of Transgas Limited

Interest Register #101206257 — CNV Easement registered December 3, 1999 in favour of Saskatchewan
Telecommunications



OFFER TO PURCHASE — FARMLAND

The Global Transportation Hub Authority (hereinafter “GTHA”)

Address: 305-1777 Victoria Avenue, Regina, Saskatchewan, ¢/o Blair Wagar Phone: 306-787-4842 Fax:
306-798-4600

(called the Purchaser), having inspected the real property, hereinafter described, offer to purchase from

101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd. ¢/o Anthony Marquart ‘
Address: 116 Albert Street, Regina, Saskatchewan, Phone: 20(1) Fax:
Cell: 29(1)

(hereinafter the “Vendor™), the following described Property:

Surface Parcel #165025414
Reference Land Description: NW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 1 (approx. 116.86 acres)

Surface Parcel #166005862
Reference Land Description: SW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 2 (approx. 87.40 acres)

(MINERALS NOT INCLUDED)

free and clear of all encumbrances, except as set out in Schedule “A* — Permitted Encumbrances, for the
sum of $21,038,780.00 Dollars ($103,000.00 per acre) to be paid as follows:

$ 5,000.00 to the office of McKercher LLP, as a deposit to be held pending completion or other
termination of this agreement and to be credited on account of the purchase price on
closing, and the sum of

$21,033,780.00 to be paid to the office of McKercher LLP at their request and to be credited on account of
the purchase price on closing,.

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
ending December 3 Ist, 2013,

3. The Vendor will pay for the preparation of the Transfer of Title and the Purchaser will pay for the
registration of the Transfer under the Land Titles Act.

4. The Purchaser warrants that he is registered under Division V, Subdivision d of The Act to amend
the Excise Tax Act (Goods and Services Tax Legislation) and that the Purchaser's Goods and Services Tax
registration number is 107864258 . The Purchaser undertakes to complete and file all necessary forms
with Canada Customs and Revenue Agency, regarding GST and agrees to indemnify and save harmless
the Vendor for the payment of GST,

G\Common'Freedom of Information\GTH (42-50)- 16 - GeofT Leo May 26, 2016\GTH 47-16G Geoff Leo_May 26 2016*Original Documents\Oifer to Purchase -
Farmiland from 101225232 Sask Lid. (R1067767) - 2.doc - 10:38 AM / August 9, 2016
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5. This offer is not subject to any conditions.
6. The following personal property is included in the sale: N/A

7. The Vendor warrants to the Purchaser that the Vendor has not used or permitted the use of the
Property, either now or at any time in the past, for:

(1) the storage and/or dumping of}
(2) as alandfill or waste disposal site of}

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
actions or investigations under any provincial or federal legislation.

The Vendor further warrants that it shall indemnify and save harmless the Purchaser from any claims or
actions of any kind or nature arising from the Vendor’s act or omission or failure to comply with any
environmental law or regulation.

8.  Both parties agree to execute promptly, when prepared, any documents required to complete this
transaction, ‘

9. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

10.  This offer is irrevocable by the Purchaser and open to acceptance by the Vendor up to 12:00 noon
on December 24, 2013, and if accepted within that period or before revocation shall constitute 2 binding
contract of purchase and sale.

11. If this offer is not accepted, the entire deposit, will be refunded to the Purchaser. If this offer is
accepted and the Purchaser fails to comply with any of the terms, the deposit will be forfeited to the
Vendor and this Agreement will be void at the Vendor's option and the Purchaser will have no more
interest in the property.

12.  This Agreement is binding on the heirs, executors, administrators, or successors of the Vendor and
Purchaser.

13. The parties agree that in order to facilitate the execution of this Agreement, faxed signatures shall
be deemed to be valid signatures.

14,  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Saskatchewan.

15. It is understood and agreed that there are no other representations, warranties, guarantees, promises
or agreements other than those containing in this Agreement.
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16.  This Agreement may be executed (by facsimile or otherwise) in any number of counterparts, each of
which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but
one and the same instrument,

SIGNED by the Purchaser on December 23, 2013.

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB AUTHORITY

(seal}
Per:
~ Blair Wagar

ACCEPTANCE

I hereby accept this offer with all conditions contained therein and I certify that I am not a non-resident as
defined by the Income Tax Act,

SIGNED by the Vendor on December __ ,2013,

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

(seal)
Per:

Purchaser’s Solicitor; David J. BishoE — McKercher LLP

Address: 500 - 2220 12" Ave., Regina, SK S4P 0M8
Phone #: (306) 565-6500

Fax #: (306) 565-6565

Vendor’s Solicitor:

Address:

Phone #:

Fax #;
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Schedule “A” — Permitted Encumbrances

As to Surface Parcel #165025414:

Interest Register #101206224 — CNV Easement registered August 29, 1978 in favour of Transgas Limited

Interest Register #101206235 — CNV Easement registered October 5, 1979 in favour of Kinder Morgan
Cochin ULC

Interest Register #116678706 — Public Utility Easement registered August 16, 2010 in favour of Petroleum
Transmission Company

Interest Register #117048078 — Pipelines Act — Easement registered December 22, 2010 in favour of
Kinder Morgan Cochin ULC

Interest Register #117140442 — Public Utility Easement registered February 7, 2011 in favour of
Petroleum Transmission Company

As to Surface Pareel #166005862:

Interest Register #101206246 — CNV Easement registered August 29, 1978 in favour of Transgas Limited

Interest Register #101206257 — CNV Easement registered December 3, 1999 in favour of Saskatchewan
Telecommunications
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GTH Board Meeting CONFIBENTIAL Becember 3, 2013

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Government of Saskatchewan acquire the property described below
to support the development of the interchange to access the Global Transporlatlon Hub (GTH)
with surplus lands being sold to the GTH for further development. The price of acquisition be
$105,000 per acre for a total cost of approximately $21,447,300.

NW 20-17-20 W2 totéling approximately 116,86 acres, and

SW 20-17-20 W@ totaling approximately 87.40 acres

The Ministry of Highways estimates they require 78 acres of the proposed property for the
interchange. The remainder could be utilized by the GTH. _

(See attached map appendix one)

Rationale

The above mentioned properties exist between the GTH and Pinkie Road and are necessary to
allow the development of the interchange allowing access to the GTH from Pinkie Road.

A full interchange at Pinkie Road has been a key element of the value proposition for the GTH
from its inception. Unfortunately these lands were not acquired during the initial land assembly.
Ongoing communications with tenants and prospective tenants of the GTH have always included
the commitment of government that the interchange would be built.

Acquisition of these lands at this time will ensure that planning for the interchange can be
completed and an orderly timeline for construction can be accommodated.

Considerations

17(1)(@)(b)(1)




GTH Board Meeting CONFIDENTIAL December 3, 2013

Determining appropriate value has been a challenge in the current environment. Price increases
and limited availability have been overriding characteristics of the Regina industria) lands market

for the past few years.

The recent sales of industrial properties developed and serviced by the city of Regina resulted in
swift sale and an average price of $425,000 per acre.

The GTH currently values its serviced property in excess of $200,000 per acre with servicing
costs of approximately 18(1)(b)(e)(f), 17(1)(c) per acre.

The lands in question are the last industrial zoned lands within the Regina city limits.

17(1)(a)(b)(i)

The Ministry of Highways has typically used the Direct Comparison approach. An appraisal
done in October 2013, by “Canadian Resource Valuation Group Inc.”, estimated the value for
the northern property at $65,000 per acre and the southern property at $51 ,000 per acre. Total

estimated value $12,055,000.

A Cash Flow-Subdivision Development Analysis, done in February 2013 by 29(1), 18(1)(d)(h),
19(1){(b)(c)(i)(ii} placed the value of the land at $129,556 per acre. Total estimated value $26,463,
1 00,

Actual closing costs for the above mentioned lands at February 26, 2013 were $10,001,360 for the
NW property consisting of 116.86 acres. With a cost of capital per diem of 17(1)(a),18(1)(b) from
February 26, 2013, and assuming a closing date of February |, 2013 we have 339 days totaling
17(1)(a),18(1)(b) and a total land cost of 17(1)(a),18(1)(b)/acre).

The SW property consisting of 87.40 acres had a ¢losing cost of $6,396,670. With a cost of
capital per diem of 17(1)(a),18(1)(b) from February 26, 2013, and assuming a closing date of
February |, 2013 we have 339 days totaling 17(1)(a),18(1)(b) and a total land cost of 17(1)

(a),18(1)(b)/acre).
Total purchase cost of $17,159.10/204.26 acres is $84,008.26/acre.



GTII Roard Mecting CONFIDENTIAL Becember 3, 2000

Summary:
Appraisal A Approximately $60,000 per acre total price $12,055,000
Appraisal B Approximately $129,556 per acre total value $26,463,100. | ,

Actual Purchase February 2013 Approximately $84,000 per acre total value $17,159.10
17(1)(a)

Implementation Plan

Following approval the an offer to purchase for the land as outlined above with a proposed
closing date of February 1, 2014 would be completed.

Announcement Plan

It is proposed that a routine announcement strategy be used consistent with the Ministry of
Highways routine land acquisition policies.

Diligence

‘Two appraisals were considered, see attached as well as the actual purchase price from February
2013.




G'TH Board Mecting CONFIDENTIAL December 3, 2013

Appendix One

MAP 2.3: POTENTIAL LONG TERM GROWYH AREAS
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Flanagan, Lou GTH

m:
~<ht!
To:
Subject:

Pls print.

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld

From: Richards, Bryan GTH

- ML R

Wagar, Blair GTH

Monday, December 23, 2013 4:11 PM

Flanagan, Lou GTH

Fw: URGENT - Re: Purchase from 101225232 SK Lid.

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 03:17 PM

To: Wagat, Blair GTH

Subject: Re: URGENT - Re: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

Thanks blair. Based on your understanding from minister/chair, let's proceed as directed.

Bryan

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

1t: Monday, December 23, 2013 11:11 AM

1o: Richards, Bryan GTH

Subject: URGENT - Re: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

Bryan,

We are moving forward with the offer to purchase the land owned by Marquard (seller).

17(1)(b)i)

Blair Wagar

from Wireless Handheld




From: David J. Bishop [mailto:d.bishop@mckercher.ca]
Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 02:23 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Subject: RE: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

I can

David J. Bishop — Barrister & Solicitor
McKercher LLP

500 = 2220 12" Avenue Regina SK 54P OMB
Direct Line: 306.565,6511

Switchboard: 306.352,7661

Facsimile: 306.565.6565

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended reciplents. They may contain privileged and/or confidential information. [f you are not the intended

reciplent, you are hereby notified that you received this emall in error, ang that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this emall and any attachment s strictly

prohibited. IF you receive this emall in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any attachments associated therewith from your computer. Your

cacdparation In this matter is appreciated.

From: Wagar, Blair GTH [mailto:blair.wagar@thegth.com]

Sent: December 23, 2013 2:21 PM

To: David 1. Bishop

Cc: Malach, Pam GTH

Subject: Re: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

David,

22(a}(b)

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld

From: Dévld J. Bishop [mailte:d.bishop@mckercher.ca]

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 01:21 PM
To: Wagar,
Cc: Malach,
Subject: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

22{aib)

Blair
Pam

GTH
GTH




wid Bishop

Colette Woles

Legal Assistant

McKercher LLP

500 - 2220 1Zth Avenue, Reging, SIK S4POMB

Direct Line; 306.565.6558 | Main Line: 306.565.6500
Facsimile: 306.565.6555 | www.mckercher.ca

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended reciplents. They may contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you are
not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you recelved this email in ervor, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of
this emall and any attachment Is strictly prohibited. If you recelve this email in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any
attachments associated therewith from your computer, Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated.



Wagar, Blair GTH

rom; Wagar, Blair GTH
sent; December 24, 2013 10:37 AM
To: louisranger 29 (1)
Cc: Schroeder, Matt GTH; Richards, Bryan GTH
Subject: Fw: Update - Marguart Land
Hi Louis,

As the Chair of the A&F committee we wanted to update you on the outcome from the
Government's Dec 18th and Board's Dec 19th decision to acquire the lands to the East of the
GTH. As of 19:00am today we have an accepted offer to purchase with a closing date set for
February 14, 2014. The purchase price is just over $21M for the 203 acres.

Merry Christmas Louis and all the best for 2014,

Cheers,

Blair Wagar
From Wireless Handheld

----- original Message -----
‘om: Wagar, Blair GTH
sent: Tuesday, December 24, 2013 18:26 AM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH
Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Pushor, Laurie ECON; Schroeder, Matt GTH

Subject: Re: Update - Marguart Land

Bryan,

Eurther to my note below, we have an ACCEPTED Offer to Purchase. I received the signed Offer
back from the seller at 10:02am this morning. The next step is to ensure all the proper
closing documentation and funds is in place on or before February 14, 2014.

I've copied Matt into this note so he is up to date on status of this purchase and the timing
for the funds for closing.

I will also sent Louis an update as the Chair of the A&F Committee so he's up to date,

Merry Christmas alll

Blair Wagar
from Wireless Handheld

--- Original Message -----
v'om: Wagar, Blair GTH
Sent: Monday, December 23, 2813 10:00 PM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH
Cc: Baker, Cam £CON; Pushor, Laurie ECON



Subject: Update - Marquart Land

Hi Bryan,

As per instructions, I've emailed an unconditional Offer to Purchase the two parcels of land
between the GTH and the West Regina Bypass. The seller is a SK numbered company who's
President is Anthony Marquart.

The total purchase price is just over $21M for the 203 acres.

17(1)(b)(i)(iii)
If the offer is accepted, the closing date is set for February 14, 2014,

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld




Waga r, Blair GTH

‘rom; Wagar, Blair GTH
dJent: January 7, 2014 4:26 PM
To: Baker, Cam ECON
Ce: Richards, Bryan GTH
Subject: 16(1)

Importance: High
Hi Cam,

16(1)

Thanks

Blair

BLAIR WAGAR

Chizf Operating Cificer

GLOBAL YRAMSPORTAFION HUA
350 - 1777 Victorla Avenue

REGINA SK S4pP 4KS

P: 306,798.4602 C: 306.539.2778

F: 306.798.4600

www.thepth.com

L'of SMA
TRANS PORTATION
Fivas



Wagar, Blair GTH

rom: Wagar, Blair GTH
Sent: _ January 16, 2014 11:33 AM
To: 'David J. Bishop' .
Ce: Richards, Bryan GTH; Matach, Pam GTH
Subject: Marquart - Amending Agreement for Closing Date

Hi David,

2{ali)

Thanks,

AAIR WAGAR

Chief Operating Officer

GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB
350 - 1777 Victorla Avenue

REGINA 5K $4P 4K5

P; 306.798.4602 C:306.539.2778

F: 306.798.4600

www.thegth.com

SRS

= amereaas TRANSPORTATION
LI Yoo HUB

Jon




ngar, Blair GTH

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Jent: January 17, 2014 11:12 AM

To: 'David J. Bishop'

Ce: Laura M. Ward

Subject: RE: GTHA Purchase from 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd.
Attachments: FINAL SIGNED-101225232 Saskatchewan (A.Marquart).pdf

P '
Sign copy attached. : p o M -‘{;' M{;«JL‘ ( MA M,baﬁ

From: David J. Bishop [mailto:d.bishop@mckercher.ca) ko Br
Sent: January 16, 2014 5:22 PM '

\ h s
To: Wagar, Blair GTH 0['1"?‘\ ) b‘@% 0*‘5

Cc: Laura M, Ward (
Subject: RE: GTHA Purchase from 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd. SW A SJ(t(
Please . that would be great \ A o"‘} w J IJ
¥ i

| B o™
David J. Bishop — Barister & Solicitor 50
McKercher LLP 9 L
500 - 2220 12 Avenue Regina SK 54P OM8 o X{
Direct Line: 306.565.6511 %\D .
Switchboard: 306.352.7661

Facsimile: 306.565.6565

. hig massage and any attachrnents ara solely for Lhe use of intended recipients. They may contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you are nol the intended
reciplent, you are hereby notified that you received this emai in error, and Ukal any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this email and any attachment is strictly
prohiblted. (F you receive this email In errar please contact the sender and delete the message and any altachments assotiated therewith from your computer, Your
cooperation In this matter Is appreciated.

From: Wagar, Blair GTH [mailto:blair.wagar@thegth.com)
Sent: January 16, 2014 5:08 PM

To: David 1. Bishop

Cct Laura M, Ward; Colette L. Wolos

Subject: RE: GTHA Purchase from 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd.

t will get Bryan to sign this copy so signatures are on both.

From: David J. Bishop [mailto:d.bishop@mckercher.cal
Sent: January 16, 2014 5:07 PM

To; Wagar, Blair GTH

Cc: Laura M, Ward; Colette {., Wolos

Subject: FW: GTHA Purchase from 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd.

FYi

David J. Bishop ~ Barrister & Solicitor

McKercher LLP

800 - 2220 12" Avenue Regina SK $4° 0M8
‘ect Line: 306,565.6511

witchboard; 306.352.7661

Facsimile: 306.565.6565



This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended recipients. They may contain privilaged andfor confidential information. If you are not the Intended
recipient, you are hereby notified thet you received Lhis emall in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution ar copying of this email and any atiachment is strictly
prehiblted. if you receive this email In error please contact the sender and delete the méssage and any attachments assoctated therewith from your compuler. Your
cooperation in this matter is appreciated.

From: Dale Canham [mallto:dcanham.drc@sasktel.net]

Sent: January 16, 2014 5:05 PM

To: Laura M. Ward

_ C€c: David . Bishop

Subject: RE: GTHA Purchase from 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Mi Dave / Laura ... attached is a scan of the signed amendment ... kindly have same signed by your client and scan a copy
to me.

Thanks,

bale A. Canham

Legal Professional Corporation
Barrister & Solicitor

116 Albert Street, Regina, SK S4R 2N2
CANADA

Direct Line: (366) 791-2503

Fax: (3086) 543-9655

e-mail: dcanham.drcfisasktel.net

From: Laura M. Ward [mailto:|,.ward@mckercher.ca]

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2014 3:55 PM

To: Dale Canham

Cc: David J. Bishop

Subject: RE: GTHA Purchase from 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Good afternoon,

Attached is the First Amending Agreement with a closing date of March 3, 2014, Please have the Agreement executed
and returned to our office as soon as possible.

Thank you.

Laura M. Ward

Legal Assistant, Real Estate
McKercher LLP

Direct Line: 306.565.6566
www.mckercher.ca

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2014 3:02 PM

To: David J. Bishop

Cc: Laura M. Ward

Subject: RE: GTHA Purchase from 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Thanks Dave / Laura ... Further to my email to Dave ... | advise that our client is prepared to agree to an extension of the
closing date of either Feb 28 or March 3, 2014 ... the March 6™ date is not acceptable to our client.

Kindly advise as to this at your earliest convenience



Dale A. Canham

Legal Professional Corporation
Barrister & Solicitor

.16 Albert Street, Regina, SK S4R 2N2
CANADA

Direct Line; (3@6) 791-2503

Fax: (386) 543-9655

e-mail: dcanham.drc@sasktel.net

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2014 2:17 PM

To: dcanham.dic@sasktel.net

Cc: David J, Bishop

Subject: GTHA Purchase from 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd.

Good afternoon,

Further to your discussions with David Bishop regarding the above captioned matter, attached please find the First
Amending Agreement. Please have your client execute the Agreement and return a copy of same to our office as soon

as possible.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please let us know. Thank you.

Laura M. Ward
Legal Assistant, Real Estate
McKercher LLP

N0 - 2220 12th Avenue, Regina, SK S4POMY

droct Ling: 306.565.6566 | Main Line: 306.565.6500
Facsimile: 306.565.6565 | www.mckercher.ca

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended reciplents, They may contain privileged and/or confidential inforenation. if Yyou are
net the Intended reciplent, you are hereby notifled that you received this emall in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of
this email and any attachment is strictly prohibited. If you receive this email in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any
attachments associated therewith from your computer, Your cooperation in this matter s appreciated,




Richards, BQan GTH .

“from; Pushor, Laurie ECON

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 9:09 AM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Ce: Baker, Cam ECON

Subject: Land aquisition

We have approval to aquire the land we have been discussing for the purchase price of $103,000 per acre. Would you
please proceed with an offer to Mr. Marquard as soon as possible?

I'will be happy to assist If you need anything further from me, In the meantime | will contact highways to ensure they are
ready with the land they will need and we can get that underway so you aren’t held up in selling that portion to them.

Call if you have questions.
Laurie

Lauria Pushor

Senior Advisor

Ministry of the Economy
Government of Saskatchewan
Office 306-933-7880

Cell 306-527-1132

imail |laurie.pushor@gov,sk.ca




Richards, Bl_'zan GTH

rom: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 3:35 PM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH; Pushor, Lautie ECON
Cc: Baker, Cam ECON

Subject: RE: Land acquisition

Hi Laurie,

Couple of questions I'm hoping you can help me with:

1. Are you able to provide me with the legal name of the individual or company we are to insert into the formal
Offer to Purchase? Want to be sure have this right as It will be who the cheque Is made out to.

2. Can you provide expectations on a closing date? 17(1){b){i), 16(1)

3. Canyou confirm the parcels the GTH is to purchase are as follows:
NW 20-17-20 W2 - ahout 116.86 acres
SW20-17-20 W2 - about 87.40 acres

Thanks,

Hair

From: Richards, Bryan GTH

Sent: December 19, 2013 2:27 PM

To: Pushor, Laurie ECON

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Wagar, Blair GTH
Subject: Re: Land aquisition

Thanks Laurie,

I have reviewed with blair this morning and he will be in contact about raising an offer for this land as soon as
feasible.

Bryan

From: Pushor, Laurle ECON

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 5:09 AM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON

Subject: Land aquisition

Ne have approval to aguire the land we have been discussing for the purchase price of $103,000 per acre. Would you
please proceed with an offer to Mr, Marquard as soon as possible?




| will be happy to assist if you need anything further from me, In the meantime | will contact highways to ensure they are
ready with the land they will need and we can get that underway so you aren’t held up In selting that portion to them.

Call if you have guestions.
Laurie

Laurie Pushor

Senior Advisor

Ministry of the Economy
Government of Saskatchewan
Office 306-933-7880

Cell 306-527-1132

Email laurie.pushor@gov.sk.ca




Schroeder, Matt GTH

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Friday, December 20, 2013 4:35 PM
To: '‘David J. Bishop'

Cc: Malach, Pam GTH; Richards, Bryan GTH
Subject; RE: Land acquisition

Attachments: RE: Land acquisition

Hi David,

22{a)(b)

Blair

From: David J. Bishop [mailto:d.bishop@mckercher.ca]
Sent: December 19, 2013 3:19 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH
Subject: RE: Land aquisition

No problem,

David J. Bishop — Barrister & Solicitor
McKercher LLP

500 ~ 2220 12" Avenue Regina SK 54P OMB
Direct Line; 306.565.6511

Switchvboard: 306.352.7661

Facsimile: 306.565,6565

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended recipients. They may contain privileged and/or confidential information. 1f you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that you received this email in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this email and any attachment is strictly
prohibited. If you receive this email in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any attachrents associated therewith from your computer. Your
cooperation in this malter is appreciated.

From: Wagar, Blair GTH [mailte:blair.wagar@thegth.com}
Sent: December 19, 2013 3:15 PM

To! David 1. Bishop
Subject: FW: Land aquisition
Importance: High




David,

22{a)(b)

From: Richards, Bryan GTH

Sent: December 19, 2013 2:27 PM

To: Pushor, Laurie ECON

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Wagar, Blair GTH
Subject: Re: Land aquisition

Thanks Laurie.

I have reviewed with blair this morning and he will be in contact about raising an offer for this tand as
soon as feasible.

Bryan

From: Pushor, Laurie ECON

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 5:09 AM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON

Subject: Land aquisition

We have approval to aguire the land we have been discussing for the purchase price of $103,000 per
acre. Would you please proceed with an offer to Mr. Marquard as soon as possible?

I will be happy to assist if you need anything further from me, in the meantime | will contact highways to ensure
they are ready with the land they will need and we can get that underway so you aren’t held up in selling that
portion to them.

Call if you have quastions,

Laurie




Laurie Pushor

Senior Advisor

Ministry of the Economy
Government of Saskatchewan
Office 306-933-7880

Cell 306-527-1132

Email Jaurie.pushor@gov.sk.ca




GTH Board Mecting CONFIDENTIAL Dec 19, 2013

Recommended Motion:

That the Global Transportation Hub acquire the property described below to support the
development of the interchange to access the Global Transportation Hub (GTH) with surplus
lands being retained by the GTH for further development. The price of acquisition shall be
$103,000 per acre for a total cost of approximately $21,038,780.

NW 20-17-20 W2 totaling approximately 116.86 acres, and
SW 20-17-20 W@ totaling approximately 87.40 acres

The Ministry of Highways estimates they require 78 acres of the proposed property for the
interchange. The remainder could be utilized by the GTH.

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
the commitment of government that the interchange would be buiit.

Acquisition of these lands at this time will ensure that planning for the interchange can be
completed and an orderly timeline for construction can be accommodated.



GTH Board Meeting CONFIDENTIAL Dec 19,2013

Considerations

17(1)(a)(b)(i)

Determining appropriate value has been a challenge in the current environment. Price increases
and limited availability have been overriding characteristics of the Regina industrial lands market
for the past few years.

The recent sales of industrial properties developed and serviced by the city of Regina resulted in
swift sale and an average price of $425,000 per acre.

As a result of these sales, direction was provided at the most recent GTH Board of Directors
meeting to revise the Hub’s pricing policy to ensure fair value is being obtained through sales.
This will likely result in higher asking costs for serviced property at the GTH,

The lands in question are the last industrial zoned lands within the Regina city limits.

17(1)(a)(b)i}

The Ministry of Highways has typically used the Direct Comparison approach, An appraisal
done in October 2013, by “Canadian Resource Valuation Group Inc.”, estimated the value for the
northern property at $65,000 per acre and the southern property at $51,000 per acre. Total
estimated value $12,055,000.

A Cash Flow-Subdivision Development Analysis, done in February 2013 by 29(1), 18(1)(d)(h),
19(1)(b)(c)(iX(ii) placed the value of the land at $129,556 per acre. Total estimated value
$26,463,100.

Actual closing costs for the above mentioned lands at February 26, 2013 were $10,001,360 for
the NW property consisting of 116.86 acres. With a cost of capital per diem of 17(1)(a), 18(1)(b)
from




GTH Board Meeting CONFIDENTIAL Dec 19, 2013

February 26, 2013, and assuming a closing date of February 1, 2013 we have 339 days totaling
17(1)(a), 18(1)(b) and a total land cost of 17(1)(a), 18(1)(b)/acre).

The SW property consisting of 87.40 acres had a closing cost of $6,396,670. With a cost of
capital per diem of 17(1)(a), 18(1)(b) from February 26, 2013, and assuming a closing date of
February 1, 2013 we have 339 days totaling 17(1)a), 18(1)(b) and a total land cost of 17(1)a),
18(1)}{b)/acre).

Total purchase cost of $17,159.10/204.26 acres is $84,008.26/acre.

Summary:

Appraisal A Approximately $60,000 per acre total price $12,055,000

Appraisal B Approximately $129,556 per acre total value $26,463,100.

Actual Purchase February 2013 Approximately $84,000 per acre total value $17,159.10
17(1)&)
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

Two appraisals were considered, see attached as well as the actual purchase price from February
2013,



GTH Board Meeting CONFIDENTIAL Dec 19, 2013

Appendix One
MAP 2.3;: POTENTIAL LONG TERM GROWTH AREAS
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Schroeder, Matt GTH

From: Wagar, Blair GTH
Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2014 5:06 PM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH
, Ce: Pidskalny, Kandace GTH
Subject: FW: Marquart - Amending Agreement for Closing Date
Attachments: First Amending Agreement (R1080935).docx
Bryan,
17(1)b)(i), 16(1)
Blair

From: Laura M. Ward [mailto:|.ward®mckercher.ca)
Sent: January 16, 2014 3:54 PM

To: Wagar, Blalr GTH
Cc: David 3. Bishop
Subject: RE: Marquart - Amending Agreement for Closing Date

Attached is the First Amending Agreement with a closing date of March 3, 2014.
Please have the Agreement executed and returned to us as soon as possible. Thank you.

Laura M., Ward
Legal Assistant, Real Estate
McKercher LLP

www.mckercher.ca

From: David J. Bishop

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2014 12:31 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Cc: Richards, Bryan GTH; Malach, Pam GTH; Laura M. Ward
Subject: RE: Marquart - Amending Agreement for Closing Date

22(a)(b)

David 1. Bishop — Barrister & Solicitor
McKercher LLP

500 ~ 2220 12" Avenue Regina SK S4P OM8
Direct Line: 306.565.6511

Switchboard: 306.352.7661

Facsimile: 306.565.6565

This message and any attachments are solely forthe use of intended recipients. They may contain privileged and/for confidential information. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are heraby notified that you received this email in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this emall and any

i




attachment is strictly prohibited. If you receive this email in error please contact the sender and delete the-message and any attachments assogiated therawith
from your computer. Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated.

From: Wagar, Blair GTH [mailto:blair.wagar@thegth.com]
Sent: January 16, 2014 11:33 AM

To: David J. Bishop

Cc: Richards, Bryan GTH; Malach, Pam GTH

Subject: Marquart - Amending Agreement for Closing Date

Hi David,
22{a)(b)

Thanks,

BLAIR WAGAR

Chief Opetating Officer

GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB
350 - 1777 Victoria Avenue

REGINA SK S4P 4K5

P: 306.798.4602 C: 306.539.2778

F: 306.798.4600

www.thegth.com

APUEER g GLOBAL
TRANSPORTATION
GARE B i




FIRST AMENDING AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made effective the day of Janﬂary, 2014,

AMONG:

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB AUTHORITY
(hereinafter referred to as “GTHA” or “Purchaser”™)

-and-

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.,
(hereinafter referred to as the “Vendor™)

WHEREAS the Parties entered into a Offer to Purchase Farmland made by the Purchaser on December
23, 2013, and accepted by the Vendor on December 24, 2013 (the “Original Agreement™);

AND WHEREAS the Parties both wish to amend the specific terms of the Original Agreement;

AND WHEREAS, this Agreement is referred to as the “First Amending Agreement™;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, conditions and agreements herein and for
other goods and valuable consideration, the Parties agree the Original Agreement is amended as follows:

2.

The Purchaser’s Goods and Services Tax registration number is 84158643 1RT0001.
The transaction of purchase and sale is to be completed on or before March 3, 2014.

The Parties hereby agree that all the other definitions, terms and conditions contained in the
Original Agreement, unless specifically amended by this First Amending Agreement, remains in
full force and effect.

The Parties hereby agree that any future amendments to either the Original Agreement or the First
Amending Agreement must be agreed to in writing,

This First Amending Agreement may be executed (by facsimile or otherwise} in any number of
counter-parts, each of which so executed shall deemed to be an original, but all counter-parts shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

The Original Agreement is hereby modified in all respects necessary to give effect to the provision
of this First Amending Agreement. The Original Agreement, as amended by this First Amending
Agreement, and all covenants, provisos, powers, matters and things whatsoever therein are hereby
ratified and confirmed and declared to be in full force and effect and shall bind the parties hereto.

Each party agrees that it will execute such further agreements or documents as may be required or
contemplated by this First Amending Agreement to permit full compliance with the terms of the
First Amending Agreement and its purpose and intent.

This First Amending Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto
and their respective successors and perinitted assigns.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first
above written.

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB
AUTHORITY

{c/s)
Per:

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

(c/s) : Per:




Schroeder, Matt GTH

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 3:22 PM

To: Flanagan, Lou GTH

Subject: Fw: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

Attachments: Offer to Purchase - Farmland from 101225232 Sask Ltd. (R1067767).doc

Pls print attachment and put with other items | just printed. I'm on my way into the office.

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld

From: David J. Bishop [mailto:d.bishop@mckercher.ca]
Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 02:50 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Cc: Malach, Pam GTH

Subject: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

22{aj{b)
David Bishop

Colette Wolos
Legal Assistant
McKe_rcher LLP

www.imckercher.ca

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of Intended recipients. They may contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you are
not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you received this emall in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of
this emali and any attachment is strictly prohibited. IF you receive this email in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any
attachments associated therewith from your computer. Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated.




OFFER TO PURCHASE - FARMLAND

The Global Transportation Hub Authority (hereinafter “GTHA*)

Address: 305-1777 Victoria Avenue, Regina, Saskatchewan, c/o Blair Wagar Phone: 306-787-4842 Fax:
306-798-4600

{called the Purchaser), having inspected the real property, hereinafter described, offer to purchase from

101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd. c/o Anthony Marquart
Address: 116 Albert Street, Regina, Saskatchewan, Phone: 29(1) Fax
Cell: 29(1)

(hereinafter the “Vendor”), the following described Property:

Surface Parcel #165025414
Reference Land Description: NW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 1 (approx. 116.86 acres)

Surface Parcel #166005862
Reference Land Description: SW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 2 (approx, 87.40 acres)

(MINERALS NOT INCLUDED)

free and clear of all enéumbrances, except as set out in Schedule “A” - Permitted Encumbrances, for the
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
ending December 31st, 2013,

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

G:\Comnron\Freedom of Information’GTH (42+50)-16G - Geoff Leo May 26, 2016\GTH 47-16G Geol'f Leo_May 26 2016\Original DocumentsVO[Ter to Purchase «
Fanndand from 101225232 Sask Lid. (R1067767) - 2.doc - 13:38 AM / August 9, 2016




Page 2

5. This offer is not subject to any conditions.
6.  The following personal property is included in the sale: N/A

7.  The Vendor warrants to the Purchaser that the Vendor has not used or permitted the use of the
Property, either now or at any time in the past, for:

(1) the storage and/or dumping of;
(2) as alandfill or waste disposal site of;

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
actions of any kind ot nature arising from the Vendor’s act or omission or failure to comply with any
environmental law or regulation.

8.  Both parties agree to execute promptly, when prepared, any documents required to complete this
transaction.

9.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

10.  This offer is irrevocable by the Purchaser and open to acceptance by the Vendor up to 12:00 noon
-on December 24, 2013, and if accepted within that period or before revocation shall constitute a binding
contract of purchase and sale.

11, If this offer is not accepted, the entire deposit, will be refunded to the Purchaser. If this offer is
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

i3. The parties agree that in order to facilitate the execution of this Agreement, faxed signatures shall
be deemed to be valid signatures,

14. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Saskatchewan.

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
one and the same instrument, '

SIGNED by the Purchaser on December 23, 2013.

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB AUTHORITY

(seal)
. Per:

Blair Wagar | |

ACCEPTANCE

I hereby accept this offer with all conditions contained therein and | certify that I am not a non-resident as
defined by the Income Tax Act.

SIGNED by the Vendor on December 2013,

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

(seal)
Per:

Purchaser’s Solicitor:  David J. Bishop — McKercher LLP

Address: 500 — 2220 12™ Ave., Regina, SK S4P 0M8
Phone #: (306) 565-6500

Fax #: (306) 565-6565

Vendor’s Solicitor:

Address;

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

Interest Register #116678706 — Public Utility Easement registered August 16, 2010 in favour of Petroleumn
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

From: Wagat, Blair GTH

Sent: Meonday, December 23, 2013 3:21 PM

To: Flanagan, Lou GTH

Subject: Fw: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

Attachments: Offer to Purchase - Farmland from 101225232 Sask Ltd. (R1067767).doc; 108879.32_

4020_20131223_13070928572.pdf

Lou,
Can you please print items 2-4 below.
Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld

From: David J. Bishop [mailto;d.bishop@mckercher.cal
Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 01:21 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH
Cc: Malach, Pam GTH
Subject: Purchase from 101225232 SK Lid.

22(a)(b)

1.

David Bishop

Coletie Wolos
Legal Assistant
McKercher LLP

www,mckercher.ca

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended recipients, They may contain privileged and/for confidential Information. If you are
nat the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you received this email In ervor, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of
this email and any attachment is strictly prohibited. If you receive this email In error please contadt the sender and delete the message and any
attachments associated therewith frora your computer, Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated.



OFFER TO PURCHASE - FARMLAND

The Global Transportation Hub Authority (hereinafter “GTHA™)
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

free and clear of all encumbrances, except as set out in Schedule *A” — Permitted Encumbrances, for the
sum of $21,038,780.00 Dollars ($103,000.00 per acre) to be paid as follows:

$38,780.00  to the office of McKercher LLP, as a deposit to be held pending completion or other
termination of this agreement and to be credited on account of the purchase price on
closing, and the sum of

$21,000,000.00 to be paid-to the office of McKercher LLP at their request and to be credited on account of
the purchase price on closing.

THIS OFFER 1S SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

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
ending December 31st, 2013.

3. The Vendor will pay for the preparation of the Transfer of Title and the Purchaser will pay for the
registration of the Transfer under the Land Titles Act.

4,  The Purchaser warrants that he is registered under Division V, Subdivision d of The Act to amend
the Cxcise Tax Act (Goods and Services Tax Legislation) and that the Purchaser's Goods and Services Tax
registration number is 107864258 . The Purchaser undertakes to complete and file all necessary forms
with Canada Customs and Revenue Agency, regarding GST and agrees to indemnify and save harmless
the Vendor for the payment of GST.

5. This offer is made conditional on the Purchaser obtaining approval for a loan of the least

G:\Common'Freedom of Information\GTH (42-50)-16G - GeolT' Leo May 26, 2016\GTH 47-16G Geoll Leo_May 26 2016\Original Documents'2 - Offer to Purchase -
Farndand from 101225232 Sask Ltd. (R1067767).doc - 10:39 AM / August 9, 2016
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

(c) If the Purchaser deems it necessary to conduct environmental testing or inspection to satisfy
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

9. Both parties agree to execute promptly, when prepared, any documents required to complete this
transaction.

10. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

I1. This offer is irrevocable by the Purchaser and open to acceptance by the Vendor up to 12:00 noon
on December 24, 2013, and if accepted within that period or before revocation shall constitute a binding
contract of purchase and sale. '

12,  If this offer is not accepted, the entire deposit, will be refunded to the Purchaser. If this offer is
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

14.  The parties agree that in order to facilitate the execution of this Agreement, faxed signatures shall
be deemed to be valid signatures.

15. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Saskatchewan.

16. It is understood and agreed that there are no other representations, warranties, guarantees, promises
or agreements other than those containing in this Agreement.

7. This Agreement may be executed (by facsimile or otherwise) in any number of counterparts, each of
which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but
one and the same instrument.

SIGNED by the Purchaset on December 23, 2013,

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB AUTHORITY

(seal)
Per:

Blair Wagar

ACCEPTANCE

I hereby accept this offer with all conditions contained therein and I certify that | am not a non-resident as
defined by the Income Tax Act,

SIGNED by the Vendor on December ___,2013.

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

(seal)
Per:

Purchaser’s Solicitor: David J. BishoE - McKercher LLP

Address: 500 — 2220 12" Ave., Regina, SK S4P 0MS8
Phone # (306) 565-6500

Fax #: (306) 565-6565

Vendor’s Solicitor;

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

Interest Register #101206246 — CNV Easement registered August 29, 1978 in favour of Transgas Limited ‘

Interest Register #101206257 — CNV Easement registered December 3, 1999 in favour of Saskatchewan
Telecommunications
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i1 Search Results [

Search By: Title Details

With Criterla: As Of Date = 23-Dec-2013 08:43:34
Title Number = 143310912
Audit: £ History: £

Printer-Friendly Version
Province of Saskatchewan

Land Titles Registry
Title
Title #: 143310912 As of: 23 Dec 2013 08:43:34
Title Status: Active Last Amendment Date: 10 Dec 2013 11:40:04,430
Parcel Type: Surface Issued: 26 Feb 2013 16:11:43,920

Parcel Value: $9,818,588.00 CAD

Title Value: $9,818,588.00 CAD Munlctpallty: CITY OF REGINA
Converted Title: 96R32979

Previous Title and/or Abstract #: 139832927

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD. is the registered owner of Surface Parcel
#165026414

Reference Land Description; NW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 1

This title is subject to any reglstered interests set out below and the exceptions, reservations
and Interests mentioned Ln section 14 of The Land Titles Act, 2000.

Registered Interests:

Interest #:
161956244 CNV Easement
Value: N/A :
Reg'd: 29 Aug 1978 02:10:43
Interest Register Amendment
Date: N/A
Interest Assignment
Date: 18 Jan 2012 10:23:14
Expiry Date: N/A
Holder:
TRANSGAS LIMITED
1000 - 1777 VICTORIA AVENUE
REGINA, SK, Canada S4P 4K5
Client #: 100399484
Int. Register #: 101206224
Converted Instrument #; 78R42753
Feature #: 100035098

hitps://apps.isc.ca/LAND/tps/scripts/ TPSRtvStd Tt1Dt1-By Ttl.asp?ttiSysKeyld=14331091... 12/23/2013



Tit]e Detail

Interest #:
161956255

Interest #:
161956266

Interest #:
161956277

https://apps.isc.ca/LAND/tps/scripts/TPSRtvStdTtID{l-ByTtl.asp?itlSysKeyld=14331091...

Page 2 of 4

CNV Easement
Value: N/A
Reg'd: 05 Oct 1979 02:12:29
Interest Reglster Amendment
Date: N/A
Interest Asslgnment
Date: N/A _
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

KINDER MORGAN COCHIN ULC

1500 - 1874 SCARTH STREET
REGINA, SK, Canada S4P 4E9

Client #: 100407642

Int. Reglster #: 101206235
Converted Instrument #: 79R48704
Feature #: 999999

Public Utility Easement
Value: N/A
Reg'd: 16 Aug 2010 11:10:20
Interest Register Amendment
Date: N/A
Interest Assignment
Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

Petroleum Transmission Company

P.O. Box 11162, Sulte 1100, 1055 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, British Columbla, Canada V6E 3R5

Client #: 100939901

Int. Register #: 116678706

Pipelines Act - Easement
' Value: N/A

Reg'd: 22 Dec 2010 14:19:31
Interest Register Amendment
Date: 10 Dec 2013 11:40:04
Interest Assignment
Date: N/A
Explry Date: N/A

Plan 102126798

Holder:

Kinder Morgan Cochin ULC

#68 80 Chippewa Road

Sherwood Park; Alberta, Canada T8A 4W6
Client #: 121164397

Int. Register #: 117048078

12/23/2013
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Interest #:
161956288 Public Utility Easement
Value: N/A
Reg'd: 07 Feb 2011 11:43:49
Interest Register Amendment
Date: N/A
Interest Assignment
Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

Petroleum Transmission Company

P.0O. Box 11162, Suite 1100, 1055 West Georgla Street
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada V6E 3R5

Client #: 100939901

Int. Register #: 117140442

Interest #:

161956312 Mortgage
Value: $6,081,725.00 CAD
Reg'd: 26 Feb 2013 16:11:48
Interest Register Amendment
Date: N/A :
Interest Asslignment
Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A
Holder: .
CONEXUS CREDIT UNION 2006 /l/rO
P.O. Box 1960 Stn. Main ;

REGINA, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 4M1
Client #: 102031591
Int. Reglster #: 118991841

Interest #:

161956334 Assignment of Rents
~ Value: N/A

Reag'd: 26 Feb 2013 16:11:49

Interest Register Amendment

Date: N/A

Interest Asslgnment

Date: N/A

Expiry Date: N/A

Holder: . /M (JI

CONEXUS CREDIT UNION 2006

P.O. Box 1960 5tn. Main

REGINA, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 4M1
Cllent #: 102031591

Int. Register #: 118991863

Addressas for Service:

https://apps.isc.ca/ LAND/tps/scripts/TPSR{vStdTtIDtl-ByTil.asp?itlSysKeyld=14331091... 12/23/2013




Title Detail

No

Name

Owner:

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
Client #: 128333202

Parcel Class Code: Parcel (Generic)

Page 4 of 4

Address

116 ALBERT STREET REGINA, SK, Canada S4R 2N2

To request a copy, click here B1$

Back to top

https://apps.isc.ca/LAND/tps/scripts/TPSRtvStdTtIDtl-By Ttl.asp?ttiSysKeyld=14331091... 12/23/2013
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g;g?glagﬂan Surface Parcel Number: 165025414
LLD: NW 20-17-20-2 Ext 1
S{g{ E,g{?a t!on Parcel Class Code: Parcel (Generic)
Area: 41,292 hectares (116,96 acres)
Reguest Date: 23-Dec-2013 1:43:13 o'clock AM CST

106553878 153785661 15#353 (87 ! ¢
_— 109447948 %
pra—= 10 2712 > 1 — 169505392
m&m < I 1) 3 —
§ T zoghﬁs;s
-]
bt
L] 3 109%0#647 :
164715228 165025414 § 1450253660 109553788
145025560
[4/]
W
to 510.21
109553733 166005862 18] oosl.n 1 16 gisuxusousu

DISCLAIMER: THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY. It is a consolidstion of plans to assist in Idenllfs}lng the locstion,
size and shape of a parcel In relation to other parcels. Parcel hounciarles and area nay have been adjusted to
fit wrt}]1t adjacent parcels, Yo deterimine aclual boundaries, dimenslons, or area of any parcel, refer to the plan, or
consutt a surveyor,

https://apps.isc.ca/LAND/WORKING_PUBLIC/5378325315383771.png 12/23/2013




_Title Detail

fl Search Results B

Search By: Title Details

With Criteria: As Of Date = 23-Dec-2013 08:45:24
Title Number = 143310473

Audit: 2 History: »

Page 1 of 2

Province of Saskatchewan

Land Titles Registry
Title
Title #: 143310473 As of: 23 Dec 2013 08:45:24
Title Status: Active Last Amendment Date: 06 Mar 2013 13:30:25.453
Parcel Type: Surface Issued: 26 Feb 2013 16:10:03.930

Parcel Value: $6,264,954.00 CAD

Title Value: $6,264,954.00 CAD  Municipality: CITY OF REGINA
Converted Title: 99RA25307
Previous Title and/or Abstract #: 141187653

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD. is the registered owner of Surface Parcel
#166005862

Reference Land Description: SW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 2

This title Is subject to any registered interests set out below and the exceptions, reservations
and interests mentloned In sectlon 14 of The Land Titles Act, 2000.

Register erests;

Interest #:
161955119 CNV Easement

Value: N/A _

Reg'd: 29 Aug 1978 01:11:15
Interest Register Amendment -
Date: N/A
Interest Assignment
Date: 18 Jan 2012 10:18:16
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

TRANSGAS LIMITED

1000 - 1777 VICTORIA AVENUE

REGINMA, SK, Canada S4P 4K5

Client #: 100399484

Int. Register #: 101206246

Converted Instrument #: 78R42754

Feature #: 100035098

hitps://apps.isc.ca/LAND/tps/scripts/TPSRtvStdTDtl-ByTtl asp2ttiSysKeyld=14331047... 12/23/2013
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Interest #:

161955120 CNV Easement
Value: N/A
Reg'd: 03 Dec 1999 00:47:08
Interest Register Amendment
Date: N/A
Interest Asslgnment
Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A

S'ly 7.5 metres

Holder:

Saskatchewan Telecommunications
13th Floor, 2121 Saskatchewan Drive
Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 3Y2
Client #: 100006861

Int, Register #: 101206257
Converted Instrument #: 99RA28285

Addresses for Service!

Name Address

Oowner:

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD. 116 ALBERT STREET REGINA, SK, Canada S4R 2N2
Client #: 128333202

Notes:

Parcel Class Code: Parcel (Generic)

To request a copy, click here B$

Back to top

hitps://apps.isc.ca/LAND/tps/scripts/ TPSRtvStd THDt-By Ttl.asp?ttSysKeyld=14331047... 12/23/2013



nformation
Services
r-orgoraﬁon

of Soskalchewen

Surface Parcel Number: 166008862
LLD: SW 20-17-20-2 Ext 2

Parcel Class Code: Parcel {(Generic)

Area: 35,371 heclares (37.40 acres)

Request Date: 23-Dec-2013 8:45:08 o’clock AN CST

Page 1 of 1

.
, 109504647 "“@‘
164715228 165025414 145025348 ¥
195025560 109553768
502
8
M
»
E 16680515
: 166005862 peesl 1;%0254 o4 111600571
109853733 i 165028403 aeﬂm:su
315,56
' 1085062580
109447892 20284120 111600559 Eo3mn “_ﬁ__,..,-——J
:::%m"" 1647246

DISCLAMER: THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY. I is & consolldation of plans to assist in identifying the location,
size and shape of & parcel in relstion fo other parcels, Parcel boundarles and erea may have been adjusted to
ft with adiacent parcels. To detervine actual boundaries, dimensions, or area of any parcel, refer to the plan, or

consult a surveyor.

https://apps.isc.co/LAND/WORKING PUBLIC/23826083237954143.png

12/23/2013



Pl;ofile Report Page 1 of 3
Saskatchewan
Services 5

Corporation Profile Report
OF SASKATCHEWAN

Entity No: 101225232

Entity Name: 101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD, As of: 23-Dec-2013

Entity Name: 101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.

Entity Number: 101225232

Status as of Profile .

date: Active

Enlity Type: BUSINESS CORPORATION

Entity Sub Type: SASKATCHEWAN CORPORATION

Incorpotation Date:
Home Jurisdliciion:
Annuzl Return/Renswat
Date:

0B-Feb-2013
SASKATCHEWAN

31-Mar-2014

Nature of Business:  REAL ESTATE HOLDING COMPANY
Registerad Office:

Namg; 101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
Address: 116 ALBERT STREET

City/Province: REGINA, SK

Country/Postal Code:
Altention:

CANADA, S4R2N2
RONALD J. MILLER

Mailing Address:
Name:

Address:
City/Province:
Country/Postal Code:
Attention:

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
116 ALBERT STREET

REGINA, SK

CANADA, S4R2N2

RONALD J. MILLER

Allowable Number of
Directors:

Min: 1 Max: 5

Director/QOfficer IShareholder tnformation:

Dir Became:
Name;

Address:
City/Province:

06-Fab-2013

MARQUART, . ,

ANTHONY Director, YES

18 SAPPHIRE BAY Officer Position: PRESIDENT
EMERALD PARK,

https://apps.isc.ca/CobraWeb/ProfileRpt.asp?reg_no=101225232&wip=142897887&ref=

12/23/2013
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SK
Country/Postal Code: CANADA, S4L1A8
Resident Ganadian: YES
Director/Officer /Sharcholder Information:
Dir Became: 06-Feh-2013
ROTSTIEN, ,
Name: HAROLD Director; YES
2264 LORNE
Address; STGI:EEC?I' Officer Position: SECRETARY/TREASURER
City/Province: REGINA, SK
Country/Postal Code:  CANADA, S4P2M7
Resident Canadian:  YES
Director/Offtcer/Shareholder Information:
Name: HARNEI MANAGEMENT LTD.  Director: NO
Address: 2264 LORNE
ress: STREET
City/Province: REGINA, SK Shareholder: YES
Country/Postal Code: CANADA, 54P2M7 -
Class Name: Class A
Shares Held: 50.00
Director/Officer/Shareholder Information:
ROYALTY DEVELOPMENTS .
Name: LTD. Director: NO
. PO BOX 611 8TN
Address: MAIN
City/Province: REGINA, SK Shareholder: YES
Country/Postal Code:  CANADA, S4F3A3
Class Name: Class A
Shares Held: 50,00

Share Structure:

IClass Voting Rights Authorized Number Issued Number

ClassA __ IVES ___|UNLIMITED 100.00

[Class8  [NO UNLIMITED 00.00
Total Number of Shares issued: 100.00

General Information: |
Licensed with Consumer Protection Branch: NO

Event History:

Event Date
INCORPORATION (Filed on the Web) 06-Feb-2013
CHANGE SHAREHOLDERS (Filed on the Web) 24-Feb-2013

htips://apps.isc.ca/CobraWeb/ProfileRpt.aspfreg_no=101225232&wip=142897887&ref=  12/23/2013



Schroeder, Matt GTH
M

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 3:21 PM

To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Subject: Re: URGENT - Re: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

Thanks Bryan,

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld

From: Richards, Bryan GTH

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 03:17 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Subject: Re: URGENT - Re: Purchase from 101225232 SK ttd.

17(1a)(b)(i)

Bryan

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 11:11 AM

To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Subject: URGENT - Re: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

Bryan,

17(1){b)i)

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld




From: David J. Bishop [mailto:d.bishop@mckercher.ca]
Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 02:23 pM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Subject: RE: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd,

| can

David J. Bishop — Barsister & Solicitor
McKercher LLP

500 - 2220 12" Avenue Regina SK S4P OM8
Direct Line: 306.565.6511

Switchboard: 306.352.7661

Facsimile: 306.565.6565

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended recipients, They may contain priviteged and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that you recelved this email in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this email and any altachment Is strictly
prohibited. If you receive this emall in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any attachmeats associated therewith from your computer, Your

cooperation in this matter Is appreciated.

From: Wagar, Blair GTH [mailto:blair.wagar@thegth.com]

Sent: December 23, 2013 2:21 PM

To: David J. Bishop

Cc: Malach, Pam GTH

Subject: Re: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

David,

22{a)(b}

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld

From: David J. Bishop [maiIto:d.blshog@mckercher.ca]
Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 01:21 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH
Cc: Malach, Pam GTH
Subject: Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

22(a)(b)

1



David Bishop

Colette Wolos
Legal Assistant
McKercher LLP

cegt

I N www.mckercher.ca

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended rec plents. They may contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you are
not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you received this email in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of
this emall and any attachment is strictly prohibited. If you receive this email in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any
attachments associated therewith from your computer, Your cooperatfon in this matter is appreciated.
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Fl_ah'alaan, Lou GTH
R R —— MRS
From: Wagar, Blair GTH
Sent: Tuesday, December 24, 2013 10.40 AM
To: Flanagan, Lou GTH
Ce: Malach, Pam GTH
Subject: Fw: Marquart Land Purchase
Attachments: GTH - Industiial Land Purchase.pdf
Lou,

Pls print and add to the file we started yesterday. Pas print the email as well as the attachment to add to the file.

Merry Christmas Lou and all the best in 2014!

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld

From: Anthony Marquart [mallto:amarquart@royaltydevelopments.com
Sent: Tuesday, December 24, 2013 09:59 AM
To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Cc: ron.miller@29(1); d.bishop@mckercher.ca <d.bishop@mckercher.ca>
Subject: RE: Marquart Land Purchase

Blair,
Please find attached executed Offer to Purchase affixed with corporate seal.

In addition to your lawyer David Bishop, | have carbon copied my lawyer, Ron Mitler, and we look forward to working
with you.

Thank you,
Anthony

From: Wagar, Blair GTH [mailto:blair.wagar@theqth.com]

Sent: December 23, 2013 5:41 PM
To: 'amarquart@royaltydevelopments.com’
Subject: Fw: Marquart Land Purchase

Hi Anthony,

Please see enclosed. | had the wrong email address (mis-spelling of last name) so have included the failed attempts.
Please acknowledge receipt of this email.

Thanks,

Blair

Blair Wagar




-
.
o

Subject: Marquart Land Purchase ™

Lou Flanagan

Administration Manager

GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB
350 - 1777 Victoria Avenue

REGINA SK S4P 4KS

P: 306.787.48492

F: 306,798.4600

www.theath.com

Y GLORAL
T TRANSPORTATION
e 1 HUE

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mall was intended for a specific reciplent. it may contain information that Is privileged, confidential or exempt from
disclosure. Any privilege that exists is not waived. If you are not the intended recipient, do not distribute it to another person or use
it for any other purpose. Please delete it and advise me by return e-mail or telephone,




Schroeder, Matt GTH

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

22{a)(b)
David Bishop

Colette Wolos
Legal Assistant
McKeycher LLP

oo {

Colette L. Wolos <cwolos@mckercher.ca> on behalf of David J. Bishop
<d.bishop@mckercher.ca>

Monday, December 23, 2013 2:50 PM

Wagar, Blair GTH :

Malach, Pam GTH

Purchase from 101225232 SK Ltd.

Offer to Purchase - Farmland from 101225232 Sask Ltd. (R1067767).doc

B ae P www,mckercher.ca

This message and any attachments are solely for the use of intended reciplents. They may contain privileged andfor confidential information. If you are
not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you recelved this email in error, and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of
this ernail and any attachment is strictly prohibited. If you receive this email in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any
attachments associated therewith from your computer. Your cooperation in this matter is appreciated.




OFFER TO PURCHASE — FARMLAND

The Global Transportation Hub Authority (hereinafter “GTHA”)

Address; 303-1777 Victoria Avenue, Regina, Saskatchewan, ¢/o Blair Wagar Phone: 306-787-4842 Fax:
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
sum of '$21,038,780.00 Dollars ($103,000.00 per acre) to be paid as follows:

$ 5,000.00 to the office of McKercher LLP, as a deposit to be held pending completion or other
termination of this agreement and to be credited on account of the purchase price on
closing, and the sum of

- $21,033,780.00 to be paid to the office of McKercher LLP at their request and to be credited on account of
the purchase prlce on closing.

THIS OFFER 1S SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:;

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
the Excise Tax Act (Goods and Services Tax Legislation) and that the Purchaser’s Goods and Services Tax
registration number is 107864258 . The Purchaser undertakes to complete and file all necessary forms
with Canada Customs and Revenue Agency, regarding GST and agrees to indemnify and save harmless
the Vendor for the payment of GST.

CaUsers\mschraed'\Local Setings\Temporary Intemet Files\Content.Outlook\C268P3S X\ f¥er to Purchase - Farmlaad from 101225232 Sask L. (R1067767).doc -
10:17 AM / September 12, 2016
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5. This offer is not subject to any conditions.
6.  The following personal property is included in the sale: N/A

7.  The Vendor watrants to the Purchaser that the Vendor has not used or permitted the use of the
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
environmental taw or regulation.

8.  Both parties agree to execute promptly, when prepared, any documents requited to complete this
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

11.  If this offer is not accepted, the entire deposit, will be refunded to the Purchaser. If this offer is
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

14, This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Saskatchewan.

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
one and the same insttument.

SIGNED by the Purchaser on December 23, 2013.

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB AUTHORITY

{(seal)
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

Purchaser’s Solicitor: David J, Bishop — McKercher LLP

Address: 500 —2220 12" Ave,, Regina, SK S4P 0M8
Phone #: - {306) 565-6500

Fax #; (306) 565-6565

Vendor’s Solicitor:

Address:

Phone #:

Fax #:
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Schedule “A’ — Permitted Encumbrances

As to Surface Parcel #165025414;
Interest Register #101206224 - CNV Easement registered August 29, 1978 in favour of Transgas Limited

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

From: | Wagar, Blair GTH

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

No problem.

David 1. Bishop — Barrister & Solicitor
McKercher LLP .

500 - 2220 12 Avenue Regina SK S4P 08
Direct Line: 306,565.6511

Switchboard; 306.352.7661

Facsimife: 306.565.6565

This message and any attachrents are solely for the use of intended recipients. They may contain privileged and/or confidential information. IF you are not the intended
fecipient, you are hereby notified that you received this email In error, and that any review, disseminaticn, distribution or copying of this email and any attachment is strictly
prohibited. If you receive this email in error please contact the sender and delete the message and any attachments associated therewith from your computer. Your
cooperation in this matter is sppreciated.

From: Wagar, Blair GTH [m‘aiEtd:blair.-waggr@thegth.com]
Sent: December 19, 2013 3:15 PM

To: David J. Bishop
Subject: FW: Land aquisition
Importtance: High




David,

22(a)(b)

From: Richards, Bryan GTH

Sent: December 19, 2013 2:27 PM

To: Pushor, Laurie ECON

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Wagar, Blair GTH
Subject: Re: Land aquisition

Thanks Laurie.

I have reviewed with blair this morning and he will be in contact about raising an offer for this land as
soon as feasible.

Bryan

From: Pushor, Laurie ECON

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 5:09 AM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON

Subject: Land aquisition

We have approval to aquire the land we have been discussing for the purchase price of $103,000 per
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

Sent: Friday, December 20, 2013 9:55 AM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH; Richards, Bryan GTH

Cc Baker, Cam ECON

Subject: RE: Land acquisition

Attachments: Attachment - 18(1)(d)(h), 19(1)(b)c)(i)(ii); Canadian Valuation Group Appraisal.pdf;

Laurie Pushor.vcf; Anthony Marquard.vcf

Great to chat this morning, | have attached the documents we discussed and contact information.
I will get back to you on timing etc.
Don’t hesitate to enlist my help if there s anything | can do or call anytime if you need any information.

Laurie Pushor Anthony Marquard

Saskatchewan Ministry of The Economy Royalty Developments

1-306-933-7880 Work 1 (306) #57-7575Work

1-3036-737-4021 \Wark 1 (308} 787-T575 Frimary

1-306 2 abile 1{308) zm viobila

Laurie,Pusihor @gov.sk.ca amarquard @royaltydevelopments.com
PO Box 611 St Main
Regina Sask S4P 3A3 i
Canads . 1

LaUI@! e

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 3:35 PM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH; Pushor, Laurie ECON
Cc: Baker, Cam ECON

Subject: RE: Land acquisition

Hi Laurie,
Couple of questions ¥'m hoping you can help me with:

1. Are you able to provide me with the legal name of the individual or company we are to insert into the formal
Offer to Purchase? Want to be sure have this right as it will be who the cheque is made out to.

2. Can you provide expectations on a closing date? 17(1}b)(i}{16(1)

3. Can you confirm the parcels the GTH is to purchase are as follows:
NW 20-17-20 W2 —about 116.86 acres '
SW 20-17-20 W2 — about 87.40 acres

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

From: Pushor, Laurle ECON _
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

I will be happy to assist if you need anything further from me, in the meantime [ will coritact highways to ensure they
are ready with the land they will need and we can get that underway so you aren’t held up in selling that portion to
them.

Call if you have questions,
Laurie

Laurie Pushor |
Senior Advisor ‘
Ministry of the Economy
Government of Saskatchewan
Office 306-933-7880

Cell 306-527-1132

Email laurie.pushor@gov.sk.ca
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C)‘E\ @ CANADIAN RESOURCE VALUATION GROUP INC.
% #101, 24 Inglewoad Drive, St. Alberl, AB T8N 6K4
Telephone: (760) 424-8856 Fax; (h87)290-2267

Email: jwasmuth@crvg.com Website: www.crvg.com

<

Vertex Oclober 8, 2013
2222 Ave C CRVG Tiile No 13596
North Saskatoon, Saskatchewan

S7L 6C3

Attention: 24{1){K)
Dear Sir:

RE:  APPRAISAL RUPORT OF THE CURRENT MARKET VALUE OF THE NW 20-17-20-W2M
AND SW 20-17-20-W2M OWNED By 101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD. LOCATED
WITHIN THE CITY OF REGINA, SASKATCHEWAN

As requested, we have completed an appraisal estimating the Current Market Value of the herein
described subject properties to assist in purchase/sale negotiations with the owner. As instructed
in the terms of reference we have provided our opinion of the current market value of the subject
properties based on a roadside inspection of the subject propeities.

It is hereby certified that we conducted a roadside inspection from improved and unimproved
roadway allowances of the subject properties on September 26, 2013 und have also relied upon
aerial photographs, assessment information, maps, land use planning documents, and information
in the public domain. The effective date of this appraisal corresponds with the date of inspection
and Is September 26, 2013, To the best of our knowledge and belief stalements contained In this
appraisal repott, subjest to the limiting conditions set foith, are true and corveel.

We hereby certify that we have no present or contemplated interest in the subject properties
which would in any way affect statements of value expressed. Employment in and compensation
for making this appraisal arc in no way contingent upon the values reported.

In our opinion, subject to the assumptions and limiting condifions outlined herein, the
Current Market Values of the respective subject properties, ns at September 26, 2013, nre:

NW 20-17-20-W2M - SEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED NINETY SEVEN THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($7,597,000)

SW 20-17-20-W2M - FOUR MILLION FOUR HUNDRED FIFTY EIGHT THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($4,458,000)

The reader is invited to review our research, analyses, opinions and conclusions contained within
the attached report. .

Yours truly,
CANADIAN RESOURCE VALUATION GROUP INC,

24(1)(k)

RiAL ESTATE APPRAISAL ¢ LITIGATION SUPPORT » FARM & AGRI - BUSINESS CONSULIING




APPRAISAL REPORT
OF THE CURRENT MARKET VALUE

OF THE NW 20-17-20-W2M AND SW 20-17-20-W2M |

OWNED BY 101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.,
LOCATED WITHIN
THE CITY OF REGINA, SASKATCHEWAN
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APPRAISAL REPORT PREPARED FOR:

VERTEX
2222 Avenue C
North Saskatoon, Saskatchewan
S7L 6C3
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
A.l  Municipality: City of Regina, Saskatchewan
A2 Legal Description of
Subject Properties: NW 20-17-20-W2M and SW 20-17-20-W2M
A3 Current Title Numbers: 143310912 and 143310473
Ad  Titled Acres: 116.86 acres and 87.40 acres
A.5 Registered Title Holder: 101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd.
A.6 Curvent Zoning: Urban Holding Zone (UH)

A.7 Municipal Development Plan
Future Land Use Policy Area:  Light/ Medium Industvial

A8 Highest And Best Use: Holding property with the interim use of
agricultural production ripening to light and/or
medium industrial in the medium term,

A9 Effective Date of Appraisal: September 26, 2013

A.10 Date Report Issued: October 8, 2013

A.11 Estimated Value effective September 26, 2013, subject to the assumptions and
limiting conditions outlined herein:

NW 20-17-20-W2M - SEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED NINETY SEVEN
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($7,597,000)

SW 20-17-20-W2M - FOUR MILLION FOUR HUNDRED FIFTY EIGHT
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,458,000)

A.12 In the preparation of any appraisal report there are certain applicable “Assumptions
and Limiting Conditions” which are outlined within Section 1 of this repott. These
assumptions and limiting conditions provide the basic foundation of the repoit and
the reader is urged to review them along with the analyses and conclusions provided

within this repott. @Y\V@

N
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Bl

B

PURPOSE OF APPRAISAL: To estimate the current market value of the fee simple
estates within the subject properties, effective September 26, 2013, the date of inspection,

FUNCTION OF APPRAISAL: To estimate the current market value of the fee simple
estates within the subject properties to assist Vertex in negotiations with the owners(s) of
the subject properties to enable possible buy/sell agreement(s) with the owner(s).

DEFINITIONS: ‘

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: “Market value” is herein defined per the
Canadian Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice, which were adopted by
the Appraisal Institute of Canada on January 1,2012. The definition is as follows:

The most probable price which a property should bring in a conipelitive and open
market as of the specified date under all conditions requisite to a foir sale, the buyer
and seller each acting prudently and knowledgeably, and assmmning the price is not
affected by undue siimulus. Implicit in this definition are the conswmmation of a sale
as of a specified date and the pussing of iitle from selfer to buyer wnder conditions
whereby:

! buyer and seller are lypically motivated;

both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider

their best inferesis;

a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

payment Is made in terms of cash in Canadian dollars or in terms of financial.

arvangements comparable thereio; and

5. the price vepresents the normal consideration for the properly sold unqffected
by special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyohe
assoclated with the sale.

=

DEFINITION OF FEE SIMPLE ESTATE:

“Fee Simple Estate is an interost in properly imvolving possession of a title
establishing absolute ownership unencumbered by any other itlerest or esiate,
subject only lo the limitations imposed by the govermmental powers of taxation,
expropriation, police power and escheat.” !

AREA DATA:

Location/Population/Economic Base

This report addresses the current market value of two parcels of land located within the
municipal boundaries of the City of Regina (2011 pop 193,100) in the south-eastern
portion of Saskatchewan.

! The Appraisal of Real Estate, Second Canadian Edition, 2002, the Appraisal Institute of Canada, Page 5.2

RV

%ﬂ‘
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E2  The economy of the province of Saskatchewan has been very robust over the past several
years and much of the provinces success is driven by activity in and around the City of
Regina. The Avison and Young “2012 Year In Review — 2013 Market Report Regina

describes the province’s economy and growth in the City of Regina as follows:

"Suskatchewan cemented itself as a "have" province in 2012 based on increases
in Gross Domestic Product (GDP), population, and total value of building
permits issued. GDP growth was 2.9%, second among the provinces and above
the national rate of 2.1%. For 2013, the average forecast for Saskatchewan’s
GDP is 3%, first among the provinces (tied with Alberta) and exceeding the
national forecast (again 2.1%). The Royal Bank (3.9%) and Conference Board of
Canada (3.4%) expect the province’s growth rate to be the highest in Canade.
Population growth reached 6.7% for the cumulative five years to 2012, the
largest growth spurt since Statistics Canada began recording information in
1956. Residential vacancy siis at less than 0.7% and is now considered an
impediment to the province's expansion. City of Regina 2012 building permits
were close to 48% ahead of 2011, surpassing the record of 3547 milfion Issued
the same year. Records have been set in 10 of the last 11 years, and permits for
all constriction seclors were up more than 27% provincially in 2012."

E3  The positive economic analysis above is supported by the City of Regina’s Building
Permit Reports which indicate significant increases in building permit activity since 2011

(see tables on the following pages).
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FREGINA I Lity of Regina

LT B USRS T

PLANNING AND SUSTAINABILITY DEPARTMENT
BUILDING STANDARDS BRANCI

BUILDING PERMIT REPORY FOR THE MONTHS OF JANUARY 1= DECEMBER 31

PAGE 4

012 2
TYTE PERMITS VALUE UNITS | PERMITS Ve\l.l;ll'i UNITS

Single Fatnlly Dwelfings L1335 §218,148,076 113§ ™ 112,204, 303 ™
Dusplex Diwellis €9 szeanar |- oW a7 4,300,424 i
Sewni-Detactied Duellings PA] 530,954,938 142 10 2151675 0
Mubii-Attnched Mwellings 5 $81,510,681 616 a8 43320,165 8
Apatinent Divellings _ 1 570,574,193 ) 16| 35275000 41l
SUBTOTAL ' | smgagn | 20 | sseen| e
Rustdontiol Resraticinl ‘ G $265,000 - 10 381,890

Ruesinlentind Accessosy Dulldings 244 $1032,138 . 24?7 2914,184 .
Residentlal Atterstionsfdiditons [Xib Y 530,737,188 - Lnés 26,250,407

SUMTOTAL 1367 535,039,921 N 43 | 529347519 -
HutelwMutety b S16,A88,000 . d 9,181,500 .
HotelMotel Allautions I 39900000 . 3 481,397 -
Comunereisl b £75,26%118 - k1) 77.861,183 .
Commiercial Alterations i) SEOLA5,8 - 247 a6,117412

Inslustrial ) al S60,253,:107 . 16 LI 030

Inelustrial Alterations ) 1 37,180,319 - BT (R XTUE

ey kennl | $20,281000 - 2 16,161,245 -
Tnetiintiotm Alterativis B 510,620,336 ' i A5.096,12 .
Clavelunent 2 82,011,480 . 2 35.4867,27 .
{ovenunient Alteratione: 1L 518,316,235 . 4 10443418 .
SURTOTAL 446 SEISTAIAS D 400 | 5286408013

Iteriavala . S4 .

Durwolitions 208 S20,000 . T 1,400 .
SUBTOTAL, 205 o I “§1,500 -
GRAND TOTAL 3,312 $773272,570 2,720 . 2190 | $540921,339 1722

(@

=

&




VERFEX OCTOBER 2013 GLOBAL TRANSFORTATION HUB PAGES
i
HE"E:!IW l‘nt: H PRI PR
CORSTRUCTION & CORPLIANCE DEPARTMENT
BUILBNG 5 TANRARDES BRANCH
RUILEING PERMIT REPORTFOR THE MONTHS DF JANWAHRY = MARCH I, Bitd
a3 2012

TYFE PERNITE: WLLE URIE | FERMTE VALLE LRITE

Sipyls Frmily Ruwalingm S SE.ma41 I A S50 84% 30 2
ok, RedGis 7 §1.5v 12 L} ] fanv AR 12
Sami Qe Quallivgs L] §1.459B57 18 g 22040078 14
Wil Vol Eowred mgrs 2 S10 TR0 04 T 7| sqmamnm 8
Apgiinmsdi ] TGO L i|  se)atem| W
EUETOTAL 2% W AESEY ain | MBI 4B
Feisabligles] Frostesativind . - . - - -
Rkl dpznn Byl 1 BRI - ] 19708 -
Respieraliand Blkriad e Bl di qe 18} favan - Pt 8245005 -
SUBTOTAL 12 53,053,108 N b} SIBOERLY .
Hoduba® ik - - - - - .
Hidohdai AR | &, G000 - - - -
Cogniimreial ] S13.5500 - ;] S19590 0% -
Ciwid Aok £ 970 #1 A AR . 5 SENg9 80 -
ligduehial a . 0 - L 5077 HR -
Iinfustil lberal i (] 1,000 . W §1811319 -
Diec: b 1 aranaa - - - -
Deshintinnd Sdava i 5 §1. ¥ am - | §A949 e .
i - - - i $a4 00 -
ipvenieriisid Alkaiabinics - . - 5 S4 047 A -
BUBTDTAL o] $i5 412518 » 116] EIp6LIeE .
Fminwld . ) - -
Benbing ] - - w0 - -
BUBTETRL k1] 6 " k| [ s
GRAHD TOTAL 55 §155,882,208 BYD B SEMTEATR| 4D
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E4

E.5

£.6

E.7

The subject properties are located adjacent to the Global Transportation Hub to the west
and Reserve Land to the east within an area of curvent or future light/medium industrial

development. The following are quotes from the AECOM website,

“In Deceniber of 2007, the Governmeni of Canada and the Province of
Saskatchewan announced their intention to fund the Global Transportation Hub
(GTH) as part of the Asia-Pacific Gateway and Corridor Initiative. The GTH
has become one of Saskatchewan's most inportant economic development
initiatives encompassing approximately 2,000 acres of serviced land o serve as
o centre for transportation and logistics developments. Canadian Pacific
Raihvay (CPR) is presently building a new state of the arf intermodal facility
capable of supporting 250,000 container Iifis. annuatly behveen irains and
trucks. Canadian Logistics Services, servicing Loblaws stores, has a 1,000,000
square fool distribution centre. A second major development, the relocation of
CPR yards from downtown Reging to the GTH 1o form a new intermodal
Jacility, Is also neaving completion,

These existing and future developments require a high speed, high capacity
conneciion to the national highway system. The Saskatchewan Ministry of
Highways and Infrastructure (MHI), in co-operation with the City of Regina and
the Rural Municipality of Sherwood, initiated a plan to design and build a new
roachvay connection between Highway No. I and Highway No. 11 on the west
side of Regina. The new roadway was fo form a portion of the long term bypass
arowund the City and provide access for futwre development, specifically the
GTH."

Historically the economy of southerr Saskatchewan was primarily agviculturally related but
the economic growth in the province over the past several years has significantly increased
the importance of the manufacturing, energy, mining and information technology sectors to
the local Regina economy, In addition to ptivate ventures, Regina is the provincial capital of
Saskatchewan and contains offices for numerous provincial govemment departments and

Crown corporations,

The aiea is serviced by the Trans-Canada Highway, running west to Moose Jaw and Swift Curvent
and east fo Manitcba, Highway #10 nuning northeast to Yorkton, Highway #11 running northwest to
Saskatoon, Highway #48 and Highway #33 running southeast towards Manitoba and Highway #6
tunninig south to the Canada - USA border. The area is also serviced by a well established grid

system of paved or graded gravelled municipal roads, In addition: both the Canadian National -

Railway and the Canadian Pacific Railway provide rail transportation for the shipment of farm

products and heavy or bulk goods to and from the area,

Currently under construction is the West Regina Bypass fiom Highway #1 to Highway #11,

with an interchange to be located along the east side of the subject NW 20-17-20-W2M, T@,&V@ y

West Bypass is a proposed four lane twinned highway connector road linking Highway #1 ai

|
b
|
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Highway #11. The new connector road across Dewdney Avenue will carry 5,500 vehicles per
day upon projected completion in 5 years, increasing to 33,000 vehicles per day in 25 years.
The West Bypass will become part of the long term bypass route around Regina, and will
accommodate future growth of the city to a population of 300,000.%

Climate
E.8 The Regina area has a continenta! climate characterized by warm summers, cold winters, and

comparatively low annual precipitation. The Regina area varies in elevation from 1,850 to 2,400
feet above sea level, The average annual precipitation is 36 cm (14 inches), with approximately

70% falling during the growing season.

E9  Julyis the warmest month, with an average high of 26°C and an average low of 12°C. January
is the coldest month with an average high of «11°C and an average low of -22°C, The frost
fiee period lasts from about May 24™ to September 11th or 109 days relative to an average year.
The length of the growing season vaties from 174 to 179 days.

Topography
E.10  The topography of the general area varies from level to gently rolling. {

1
2 pinkie Road - Wikipedia w
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F. SUBJECT PROPERTY DATA:

Subject Property #1
Legat Description:
Registered Owners:
Title Number:
Estate:

Municipality:

Date Registered;

Sales History of the Subject
Property:

Plottage:

Topography:
Current Utilization:

Zoning:

Municipal Development Plan
Policy Aren

Improvetments:

Access:

Seivices:

Location:

Date of Inspection:
Eftective Date of Appraisal:

NW 20-17-20-W2M

101225232 Saskatchewan Lid.
143310912 (see Appendix VI {a))
Fee Simple

City of Regina

February 26, 2013

Public records show that the subject property transferred on February
26, 2013 for $9,818,588 from 139 Land Corporation to 101225232
Saskatchewan Ltd., this sale has been utilized as Index #2. On March
21, 2012 there was a miscellaneous interest registered on title by 139
Land Corporation clainming an interest as purchaser under an accepted
Offer to Purchase for $55,000 per acre confitmed with the purchaser.
Written documentation was not provided. To our knowledge the subject
property is not curveritly listed for sale, nor to our knowledge are there
any sale agreements or offers to purchase the subject property.
However, we understand the subject property is currently owned by a
development company that is active in the area.

116.86 total acres, fully cultivated with the exception of some minor
slough areas (see Appendix IV).

Undulating with some depressional slough areas,

Agricultural use (crop production),

Designated “UH~ Urban Holding” [se¢ paragraph G.7]. The current
utilization ig a permitted use.

“Light and Medium Industrial”

None visible via roadside inspection and review of available aerfal
photography.

Access via paved Secondary Highway #730 that borders the north
boundary, Rail is located a short distance east of the east property
boundary,

There are currently no services stubbed onto the property. Per
conversations with city officials, there is a 600 mm diameter water main
and a 500 mm diameter sanitary main located on the north boundary of
the NW 20-17-20-W2M that is available for hook up. [n addition, hook
up to the regionally designed water and sewer lines of the GTH may also
be available upon payment of pro-rata infiastructure service charges.

City of Regina - West Side

September 26, 2013
September 26, 2013

CBRVe

LAY,




Sales History of the Subject
Property:

Plottage:

Topography:

Current Utilization:

Zoning:

Municipal Development Plan
Policy Area

Improvements:

Access:

Services:

Location:

Date of Inspection:

Effective Date of Appraisal:
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. Subject Property #2

Legal Description: §W 20-17-20-W2M

Registered Owners; 101225232 Saskatchewan Litd.

Title Number: 143310473 (see Appendix V1 (b))

Estate: Fee Simple

Municipality: City of Regina

Date Registered: February 26, 2013

Public records show that the subject propetty transferred on February
26, 2013 for $6,264,954 fiom 139 Land Corporation to (01225232
Saskatchewan Litd,, this sale has been utilized as Index #3. On March
21, 2012 there was a miscellaneous interest registered on title by 139
Land Corporation claiming an interest as purchaser under an accepted
Offer to Purchase for $45,000 per acre confirmed with the purchaser.
Wiitten documentation was not provided. On September 13, 2011 there
was a non-arms length transfer of the property between related parties.
To our knowledge the subject property is not curvently listed for sale,
nor to our knowledge are there any sale agreements or offers to
purchase the subject property, However, we understand the subject
property is currently owned by a development company that is active in
the area.

87.40 total acres, cultivated with the exception of some smaller slough
areas (see Appendix IV).

Undulating with some depressional slough aveas.
Agricultural use (crop production).

Designated “UH- Urban Holding” [see paragraph G.7). The current
utilization is a permitted use.

*Light and Medivm Industrial”

None visible via roadside inspection and review of available aerial
photography.

No improved roadside access at time of inspection. Inspection completed
by walking to property corner on unimproved road allowance. Rail is
located a short distance east of the east property boundary.

There are curcently no services stubbed onto the property. Per
conversations with city officials, there is a 600 mm diameter water main
and a S00 mm diameter sanitary main located on the north boundary of
the NW 20-17-20-W2M that is available for hook up. In addition, hook
up to the regionally designed water and sewer lines of the GTi may also
be available upon payment of pro-rata infrastructure seyvice charges.

City of Regina

September 26, 2013 CRVe

September 26,2013 W ;
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Subject Properties Title Encnmbrances and Restrictions

F.1

E2

The subject titles have several encumbrances registered against each title as outlined
within the photocopies of the Certificates of Title {pulled on August 28, 2013), exhibited
in Appendix VI at the end of this report. All interests registered on title are summiarized

as follows:
NW 20-17-20-W2M
Registration No, Date Registered | Interest Registered | 'To the Benefit of:
161956244 Aug. 29/78 CNV Easement Transgas Limited
161956255 Oct. 5/79 CNV Easement Kinder Morgan
Cochin ULC
R Petroleum
161956266 Aug, 16/10 Plg;;znl::g:ty Transmission
Company
161956277 Dec. 22/10 Pipelines Act - Kinder Morgan
- Easement Cochin ULC
s orren Petroleum
161956288 Feb, 7/11 Pljb}:lcgtlr::ty Teansmission
seme Coimpany
161956312 Feb. 26/13 Mortgage Conexus Credit
Union 2006
161956334 Feb. 26/13 Assignment of Conexus Credit
Rents Union 2006
SW 20-17-20-W2M
Registration No, Date Registered | Interest Registered | To the Benefit of:
161955119 CNV Easement Aug, 29/78 Transgas Limited
161955120 CNV Easement Dec. 3/99 Saskatchewan
Telecommunication

The author of this report is not qualified to comment on any legal ramifications of these
encumbrances, therefore it is recommended that legal counsel be consulted to determine
the precise effects of the encumbrances on any future proposed uses or utilities of the
subject properties. Per paragraph L1 of this report we have assumed each titfe is in good
and marketable condition in estimating the fair market value of the subject properties, It
is relevant to note that in determining the market value of the subject propeities we have
not considered any discount or adjustment relative to those aveas encumbered by
registered pipeline rights of way, for which the owner has been compensated at ihe time

of signing a right of way agreement or subsequently under a Surface Rights

Compensation Order, (‘;P\V@

o
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Opinion of Market Exposure Time

F3 Under the Canadian Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice we must, as
Professional Appraisers, provide an estimate of normal market exposure time, “Exposure
Time” is defined as:

“the estimated length of time the property interest being appraised would
have been offered on the market before the hypothetical consummation of
a sale at market value on the effective date of the appraisal; a
refrospective estimate based upon an analysis of past events assuming o
competitive and open market. "

F.4  Itis the appraiser’s opinion; considering the location, the current land use designation and
the potential uses for the subject properties, that the normal market exposure time to
consurninate a sale at fair market value would be approximately six months to twenty
four months. Notwithstanding this potential exposure time, the opinion of matket value

contained hevein is effective September 26, 2013,

G. HIGHEST AND BEST USE:

G.1  “Highest and Best Use” is described in appraisal texts as the foundation on which market
value rests. The highest and best use of a parcel of land is not determined through {
subjective analysis by the property owner, the developer or the appraiser; but rather the
competitive forces within the market where the property is located shape highest and best
use, The analysis and interpretation of highest and best use is therefore an economic
study of market forces focused on the subject property.

G.2  The phrase “highest and best use” may be defined as follows:

“that reasonable and probable use that will support the highest present value, as
defined, as of the effective date of the appraisal. Alternatively, that use, from
anong reasonably probable and legal aliernative uses, found to be physically
possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and which resulls in
highest valwe,"

G.3  Market forces; such as supply, demand, ability to generate income and costs to reproduce,
create market value, Therefore, the interaction between market forces and highest and
best use is of crucial importance. The general data that is collected and analyzed to
estimate property value are also utilized by the appraiser to formulate an opinion of the
property’s highest and best use. The highest and best use of comparable or index
properties should be the same or similar to that of the subject property being appraised, as

3 Canadian Uniform Standards ol Professional Appraisal Praclice: Appraisal Institute of Canada, 2012, %M '

4 Byrl N. Boyee, Real Estate Appraisal Terminology, Bellinger 1984, pp. 126-127
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G4

G.5

it is land use or utility that influences value, This premise has been applied in respect of
the market indices utilized within this report.

If a reasonable forecast of a praperty’s highest and best use indicates a change in the near
future, the present highest and best use is considered an interim use. For example, the
highest and best use of a farm in the path of industrial growth would be for interim use as
a farm, with the potential future use being industrial subdivision and/or development,
Alternatively if the property is ready for develbpment at the time of appraisal then there
is no interim use as the highest and best use is for industria! development. On the other
hand if the farm has little potential for development, then its highest and best use is a

farm property with no alternative interim use.

There are four criteria that must be considered in the analysis of highest and best use, for

both vacant land as well as itnproved property. The highest and best use must be:

+  legally permissible
»  physically possible
+ financially feasible
+  maximally productive

The tests of legal permissibility and physical possibility must be applied before the
remaining tests of financial feasibility and maximal productivity, Financial feasibility
andfor productiveness have no relevance to a site if thé proposed use is not legally
permilted or physically possible. Tn addition to these factors, the determined highest and
best use must be within the realm of probability, not speculative or conjectural; there
must be demand for such a use and the use must provide the highest net retura for the

longest petiod of time.

Legally Permissible

G.6

If there are no private restrictions or restrictive covenants registered on title, then the

property uses allowed by the municipal zoning typically reflect the available chaices in

the highest and best use determination, subject to the probability of an imminent change
in zoning. Reference to Regina Development Plan is useful for ganging the likelihood of

any zoning change.

CB

4

&
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G.7  The current City of Regina Land Use Bylaw NO, 9250 (LUB) (see Appendix TIT (b))
designates the subject properties as *Urban Holding Zone - UH”, The intent, application,
pérmitied vses and discretionary uses within the area designated “UH” are quoted from
Section 9C.9 of the LUB as follows:

9C.9 URBAN HOLDING (UH)

9.1 INTENT
(1) The UH zone is designed 1o protect lands requirved for fulire wrban
development from premature subdivision and development, Specifically,
the zone Is intended to:
(a) provide for orderly transition of agricultural land to other uses in
areas planned for eventual urban development;
(b) defer urban development uniil the City and other local govermnent
bodies determine that adequate public facilities can be provided at
reasonable costs;
(c) ensure that future urban development is compatible with local land
use plans and policies; and
(d} provide opportunities for periodic review fo detertine whether all
or part af the lands should be transferved to another zone.

(2) Recognizing that the City is situated on and surroinded by prime
agricultural land, agricultural uses that are not associated with muisance factors will
be aftowed. [1992/9250]

9.2 APPLICATION
The zone will be generally applied to recently annexed or urbanized areas where

lands are predominantly in agricultural or related apen space use, but where
conversion to non-agricultural uses is expecled in the near fitire.

9.3 PERMITTED USES

Residential
Secondary Suite

Agricultural
Agricuitural Production (1997/9904)

Cultnre and Recreation
Compmunity Garden (2006-63)

Miscellaneuos
Public Use
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9 4 DISCREATIONARY USES

Residential
Detached Dwelling

Agricultural
Horticultural Specialties (1996/9776)
Vegetable Production (1996/9776)

Services
Amusement Park, Commercial
Campground
Church (Religious Institution)
Golf Course or Golf Driving Range
Theatre, Drive-in ’

G.8  Within the City of Regina Regional Development Plan, published April 2006, the future

G.9

land use of the subjects is designated as “Light and Medium Industrial” (see Appendix Iil
{a)). The City’s “Location of Industrial Lands® and policies regarding the subject
properties, as stated within Section 4.8 of the Regional Development Plan, are quoted as

follows:

4,8 Location of Industrial Lands

g Thal new areas for industrial growth be designated east of Ross
Industrial Park{east of Fleet Street) for short to medivim term mixed industry
and for the West Industrial Lands (including the GTH) for immediate to long
-term light and medium industrial uses. {2007 -90] (2010 -19}

The cutrent utilization of the subject properties is for extensive agricultural production
(i.e. field crops) which is permitted In the current zoning of the subject parcels.
Considering the current uses and current land use bylaws the legally permissible Highest
and Best Use of the Subject Properties is as holding properties ripening to industrial
development in the medium term future, with interim use for agricultural production.

Physically Possible

G.10

Tn order for a use to be considered the highest and best use the site must be physically
capable of supporting whatever use is determined to be appropriate, The shape, size,
topography and physical make-up of the subsoils all combine to enable the creation or
continued support of the probable use of the site. n addition, the infrastructure of the
neighbothood, such as water, sewer, gas and electricity, must support the use as well as
location and access. The highest and best use must be physically attainable and be

attainable within expected norms of design and cost to create or maintain,
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G.1l  The subject properties are located in a future industrial area within the City of Regina
which is currently utilized for agricultural production. The NW 20 is accessed via paved
Secondary Highway #730 while the SW 20 has no improved public access but can be
accessed via crossing the NW 20, The subject properties comprise larger parcels ranging
in size from 116.86 acres to 87.40 acres, At present, municipal water, sewer and drainage
services are located within the GTH to the west of the subject properties. The subject
propesties currently have no services. Water, sewer and drainage services are available at
the north property boundary of the NW 20-17-20-W2M or could be connected through
the GTH for a service connection charge. Per discussions with Saskatchewan Ministry of
Highways an interchange is proposed for the east side of the subject properties for the
West Bypass roadway. A design for this bypass has not been finalized. Condie Road

right of way is located on the west boundary of the subject properties.

G.12 Considering the locations, access and sizes of the subject properties, the physically
possible highest and best use of the subject properties will remain to be agricultural use
(crop productions) for the interim period until demand for light/medium industrial
development is sufficient to warrant transition to some form of light/medium industrial

use.

Financially Feasible |

G.13 A review of the City of Regina LUB map and our inspection of the area indicates the
majority of the land in the immediate area of the subject properties is currently utilized
for agricultural production and Industrial development within the GTH. A 100,000
square foot distribution center for Loblaws is located approximately | km west of the SW
20-17-20-W2M and the CPR yard is located approximately 1.35 km southwest of the SW
20-17-20-W2M. The market in the area s currently being diiven by
speculators/developers seeking appreciation in land values as the lands ripen for
development.

G.14  In determining the most financially feasible uses of the subject properties the appraisers’
have considered factors such as the current and future land use zoning, permitted uses,
location and municipal planning. In view of the speculative nature of the market and
taking into account the above factors, the most financially feasible uses of the subject
properties are considered to be as holding properties awaiting light/medium industrial
development in the medium term future, with primary agriculture praduction in the

interim period. ()BJV@
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Maximally Productive

G.15 To determine the maximum productivity of the subject properties we researched land
sales of similar bareland properties located within the surrounding area, Considering the
current land use zoning and permitted uses, and the speculative nature of the market, the
most maximally productive uses of the subject properties are considered to be as holding
propetties awaiting urban development in the medium term future, with uses of primary

agriculture production in the interim period.

Conclusionr and Opinion as to Highest and Best Use

G.16 As of the effective date of this appraisal, the subject properties are being utilized for
agricultural production. If a willing seller, as of the effective date of this appraisal,
placed the subject properties on the open market it is most probable that a willing buyer
would purchase the properties as medium term holding properties for future light/medium
development, Consldering the above, and based on local land use patterns and -
market conditions, it is the opinion of the appraiser that the Highest and Best Use of
the subject properties, subject to the assumptions and limiting conditions
outlined herein, as at the effective date of appraisal, are as holding properties
awaiting light/medium development in the medium term future, with primary
agricultural production uses in the interim period,

H. MARKET VALUE ESTIMATE:

H.l  There are three general approaches; the Divect Comparison Approach, the Cost Approach
and the Income Approach, that may be utilized to provide estimates of current market
value. The Direct Comparison Approach arrives at a value estimate of the subject
property (i.e. land and buildings) as a unit. The unit is compared to similar propetties of
the same type and class which have sold, which have been offered for sale, or on which
offers have been made in the same area or similar areas at or about the same effective
date. The Cost Approach provides an estimate of value derived by estimating the current
cost to construct a reproduction of the existing structuve, subtracting the accrued
depreciation, then adding the ecstimated bareland value. In the case of bareland the
methodology is the same under the Cost Approach as the Divect Comparison Approach.
As the subject properties are not improved we have used only the Direct Comparison

Approach. The Income Approach has not been utilized as we could find little in the way

of comparable land lease or rental information in order to support such an approach.
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H.2

H3

H4

The wvalues of the subjeét properties have been estimated by application of the
Comparative Sales Method, assuming the principle of substitution whereby a willing and
informed purchaser will pay no more for a specific property than he/she will for another

property that has similar features and amenities and is equally as desirable.

We have carried out roadside/driveway or boundaty line inspections of the subject
propeities and market indices, We have attempted to search for market indices which best
represent the subject properties, taking into consideration development capability, size,
location, access, topography, and zoning requirements. The market indices listed within
Table H.1 and H.2 were all purchased as “bareland™ with each bsing purchased by real

estate investment entities or development companies.

Based on our research of transfer documents obtained from Saskatchewan Land Titles
Registry, inspections of the market indices and information obtained from market
participants, the market indices contained within Table H.1 and H.2 are considered to
provide the best maiket information for establishing fee simple bareland value relative to
the subject properties. The locations of the subject properties and market indices utilized
to estimate the market value of the subject properties are outlined on the Area Map

attached as Appendix I1,
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Market Index #1

Legal Description:
Municipality:
Bareland Sale Price:
Sale Date:

Vendor:

Purchaser:

Access:

Plotiage:

Zoning

Regina Development Plan:
Topography:
Improvements:

- Comments:

Unadjusted Bareland Price:

Market Index #2

Legal Description:
Municipality:
Baveland Sale Price:
Sale Date:

Vendor:

Purchaset:

Access:

Plotiage:

Zoning

Regina Development Plan:
Topography:
Tmprovements:
Comments:

Unadjusted Bareland Price:

NW 21-[7-20-W2M

City of Regina

$7,904,134

April 4, 2013

Sherwood Multitech Estates Ltd,
Westerra Development Corp.

Paved - Dewdney Avenue and Pinkie Road
Gravel - 13th Avenue and Courtney Street
367.42 acres

UH - Urban Holding

Industrial Growth

Undulating to Depressional

None

s.19(1)(b

$21,513 per acre

NW 20-17-20-W2M (Subject Property fil)
City of Regina

59,818,588

February 26, 2013

139 Land Corporation
101225232 Saskatchewan Lid.
Paved - Secondary Highway #730
116.87 acres

UH - Urban Holding
Light/Medium [ndustrial
Undulating to Depressional

None

s.19(1)(b

[

$84,0 13 per acre
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Mailcet Index #3

Legal Description:
Municipality:
Bareland Sale Price:
Sale Date:

Vendor;

Purchaser;

Access:

Ploitage:

Zoning

Regina Development Plan;
Topography:
Improvements:

Comments:

Unadjusted Bareland Price:

Market Index #:4

Legal Description:
Municipality:
Bareland Sale Price:
Sale Date:
* Vendor:
Purchaser:
Access:
Plottage:
Zoning
Regina Development Plan:
Topography:
Improvements:
Comments:
Unadjusted Bareland Price:

SW 20-17-20-W2M (Subject Property #2)
City of Regina

$6,264,954

February 26, 2013

139 Land Corparation

101225232 Saskatchewan Lid.

No access. Condie Road right of way lecated on
west boundary of the property.

87.41 acres

UH - Urban Holding

Light/Medium Industrial

Undulating to Depressional

None

s.19(1)(b

—

$71,673 per acre

NE 18-17-20-W2M

Clty of Regina
$1,234,500

January 18, 2013

John Mainiski et al

Global Transporation Hub
No access

41.16 acres

UH - Urban Holding
Light/Médium Industvial
Undulating to Depressional
Nonpe

5.19(1)(b)

$29,993 per acre
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Market Index #5

Legal Description:
Municipality:
Bareland Sale Price:
Sale Date:

Vendor:

Purchaset:

Accoss:

Plottage:

Zoning

Municipal Bevelopment Plan:
Topography:
Improvements:
Comments:

Unadjusted Bareland Price:

Market Index #6

t.egal Description:
Municipality:
Bareland Sale Price:
Sale Date:

Vendor:

Purchaser:

Access:

Plottage:

Zoning

Municipal Development Plan:

Topography:
Improvements:
Conunents:

Unadjusted Bareland Price:
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SE 23-17-19-w2M
RM of Sherwood
$7,060,000

July 15,2012

SFJ Inc.

Harvard Developments
Paved - Tower Road
141.20 acres

A - Agricubtural

A - Apricultural, Urban Fringe
Unidulating

None

s.19(1)(b)

$49:57‘.5 pe'r acre

NE 35-16-20-W2M

RM of Sherwood

$9,227,400

June 28, 2012

P.W. Lorch & Associates
Hanjai Managemen Inc.
Paved - Service Road

04,24 acres

A - Agricuitural

A ~ Apgricultural, Urban Fringe
Depressional. Property is low and floods
None

s.19(1)(b

$97,914 per acre
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H.  MARKET VALUL ESTIMATE ~ DIRECT COMPARISON APFROACH:
j Ttk A
Mwrloet Fidices Charl Relative lo NW 230-17-30-200
Effccibve Seplember 26,2013
Preperty 1 2 3 1 s s
Frans fer Dakes - 3 26.Fch-13 - 26-Fsb-13 1B-Jan:11 15-hi-E2 2-Ju 12
e 57504,1M _ SORIBSHS 6361955 FEREE T 31000000 $3.212.400
Bareland Price 37904134 . 39513388 56,761.954 S $7.000,000 19217400
NW 11-17-20:W2M .
FW 21120V NW 20:17-20- WM
Legd Descrlptionfs); 521 VI (bjest prupery} SW 201710 WM NI 18:17-20: W20 SE23-17-19-WIM HNE35.16-10- WM
Sheevood MulPech Eslates PW. Larch & Assciies
Vendors bl 13% Lond Corpurtion 129 Lannd Caepotolinn Joha Komimlivl af SFD by, (118
10225131 5 10203232 Saskakch X
Purchaser: Werterm Devebipeurt Comp Lu), bl Granspustaion (hb | Iy Detebipneits HagaiMamperend Inc,
Pewdiey Averue and Piiks Nndriclocesss Conde | Hedinclacoess Conlir
Rusl - Pawdd Road right ofuayils beatod | #oad dddofivay s oontel
Socuradsry Pavad 1381 Aveque end Courbay Seeondary onll west bownlary ofihe | anths cast bty of the Seniee aad offal Huy 41 -
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11647 kA 116.8Y [TE]] 1116 [TTEL] [T¥1]
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City ol Buigan CayofRegiv Citvof Regon CilyofRegn City of Repia BM ol Sheived M ulSlenwned
Aatfz Lrglh unsactivn
Curenlly uBad e Curenly uSned by Ot uizd fof Amiskergh Wil Ciy of [Purcluced witk 25%cathond
ol prcdston, it e produtin | sptubena prodes Regi ncaton s A1 | PStevenlorabe bock
Fulure Wsl Uypass Ambsl:ngh trivactin ure West By pass Fuitiry Weal Dypass Emolpuchuse propussl [metppe Interchange bealsd
frtarchongs adjocend o easl Cumerly ulited for Tteee] [acent n exsl ¥ dooed st | Aswmnad Armdebrgth | e dtebangs bestrdon | onthe Ni comce of e
Cormnents: kb ofporect spzisuimglemp prodiiing sikeofporcel sileulporel fransactizn e NLE curmee ulpropety ety
Tapagraphy: Unduhting LH%‘ Lindebaing. Unfilitiy, Uahdvirg, Einduliling Keppabnil
tmprovementst Heoe Hops Mo Muns Mone M Mo
Bcnkeest Hun: Unrendied Unwenived heenind Unservited Unserviced UVieniced
IaFeated Dnicland Safe Pideet $190,1346 $9318,58%" §A,164.051 $1.204.300 STDNK 59212.400
Initentcd Untl Vatoe perAcre: sH30 ELTETE 3167 FER)) §19.575 $O1914
Wi Adfws lent [} [0 [ (1) o 0%
Moth e Adjutinent 403 [T - S DIG [0 (13 i3
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Comments and Corvelations

[1.6

H.7

H.8

Time

All six market indices are considered relatively good indicators of bareland value for the
subject properties within the City of Regina, although the prices vary significantly from
one sale to the others. A review of these market indices and other market information does
not suggest a definitive trend in lands prices over time in the immediale area of the subject
properties and therefore no time adjusiments have been applicd. At present, due to
increased demand of industrial lands in the City of Regina and significant speculation,
there is upward pressure on prices of industrial land but no definite trend could be
determined within arens surrounding the City of Regina,

Molive

s.17

Zoning/Planned Use

The subject properties are located within the “Urban Holding” avea of the current City of
Regina LUB No. 9250 and designated for future uses of lightimedium industrial. Indices
#1, #2, #3 and #d are considered similar to the subject properties as the curvent use andfor
planned future use of these properties are urban holdings for future light/medium industrial

development. Market Indices #5 and #6 is considered Lo contain inferior zoning and
planned use as the properties contain agricultural zoning with designated agricultural finure

use,
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Size

H.9 The subject properties range in size from 116.87 to 87.41 acres. The market indices range
in size from 367.42 acres to 41,16 acres. Al six of the indices are considered comparable
on a per acre basis relative (o size.

Topography

H.10 The topography of the subject properties is undulating to depressional. Index #6
topography is depressional and subject to flooding. All five of the other market indices are
constdered similar to the subject properties relative to topography.

Location/Access

H.11 The subject propstty NW 20-17-20-W2M is within the City of Regina and is accessed via
paved Secondary Highway #730. An interchange for the West Bypass is planned for
development adjacent to the property's east side. Market Index #1 contains similar access
but does not have access to an interchange which is considered inferior to the subject
propetty, Market indices #3 and 4 do not have access. Market index #3 will likely have
access to a future interchange. Market index #4 will not have access to a future
interchange. Market indices #3 and #4 are considered inferior to the subject propesty.
Market indices #2, #5 and #6 contain similar access and have access to an existing or
praposed future interchange therefore ave considered similar to the subject property

H.12 The subject property SW 20-17-20-W2M is within the City of Regina and does not have
access. An interchange for the West Bypass is planned for development adjacent to the
property's east side. Market Index #1 has access but does not have access to an interchange
which is considered inferior to the subject property. Matket Index #2, #5 and #6 have
access as well as access to a current or future proposed interchange and are considered
superior to the subject property. Market indices #4 does not have access and will not have
access to a current or proposed future interchange and is considered inferiot to the subject
property. Market index #3 does not have access but will have access to a futwe
interchange and is considered similar to the subject property.

Conclusion

H.12 The market indices indicate a non-adjusted average price per acre of approximately
$54,000. However, for Subject Property #1, the NW 20-17-20-W2M, Indices #1, #3 and
#4 are considered inferior. The average indicated value per acre excluding Indices #1, #3
and # 4 is approximately $65,000. For Subject Property #2, the SW 20-17-20-W2M, Index
#2 is considered superior and Indices #[ and #6 are considered inferior. The average
indicated value per acre excluding Indices #1, #2 and # 6 is approximately $51,000. @B\V @
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H.13 Considering all market information obtained and the values indicated via the Direct

Comparison Approach it is the appraisers® opinion the respective Market Values of the

Fee Simple Estates in réespect of the subject properties as at September 26, 2013 are:

NW 20-17-20-W2M is $65,000 per acre or $7,597,000
{$65,000/acre x 116.87 acres, rounded)

SW 20-17-20-W2M is $51,000 per acre or $4,458,000
($51,000/acre x 87.41 acres, rounded)

1. STATEMENT OF ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS:

L1

L3

We have assumed that:

the legal descriptions of the titles are correct

the land surveys and acreages as supplied by Saskatchewan Land Titles Registry
are cotrect. No legal surveys on our part were made, and we assume no
responsibility in this connection

the titles are good and marketable and that there are no encroachments,
encumbrances, restrictions, leases or covenants that would in any way affect the
valuation, except as expressly noted herein. Any charges registered against the
subject properties are outlined within the photocopies of the Certificates of Title
contained within Appendix VI of this report.

there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the properties or subsoil that
would reader them more or less valuable and no responsibility is assumed for
such conditions ot engineering that might be required to discover these factors
the subject properties comply with government regulatlons including zoning,
building codes and health regulations

Per the terms of reference, we performed only roadside/driveway inspection of the

subject properties and the owners of the subject property were not contacted.

Unless otherwise stated in this report, the appraiser has no knowledge of any
hidden at unapparent conditlons of the properties (including but not limited to the
soils, physical structure, etc,) or adverse environmental conditions (on them or a
neighbouring property, including the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic
substances, etc.) that would make the properties more or less valuable. It has been
assumed that there are no such conditions unless they were observed at the time of
inspection or became apparent during the normal research invalved in completing
the appraisal, in which case they would be noted in this report. This report should

not be construed as an environmental audit or detailed property condition report, ag

RV

such reporting is beyond the scope of this report andfor the qualifications of % )
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14

1.5

L6

1.7

1.8

appraisers, The authors make no guarantees or warranties, express or implied,
regarding the condition of the properties, and will not accept any responsibility for
any such conditions that may exist or for any engineering or testing that might be
required to discover whether such conditions exist, The bearing capacity of the
soils is assumed to be adequate. If the party relying on this report requires
information about environmental issues, then that party is cautioned to retain
an expert qualified to address such issues, We expressly deny any legal
liabllity velating to the effect of environmental issues on the market value of

the subject properties.

Market data has been obtained from documents registered at Saskatchewan Land
Titles Registry; Farmland Securities, or as reported by the local real estate board.
In addition to relying on such documented and generally reliable evidence of
matket transactions, it was also necessary to rely on hearsay evidence, Except as

noted herein, a reasonable attempt has been made to verify all such information,

Information furnished by others and used in preparation of this appraisal repoit has
been cross-checked wherever possible during the course of the appraisal and is

assumed to be accurate,

All estimates and/or opinions of value contained herein are stated in terms of
Canadian Dollars, and are expressed In terms of cash or in terms of financial

arangements equivalent to cash,

We reserve the right to review all information, data, assumptions, understandings
and calculations included or referred o in this report and, if we consider it
necessaty, to revise our cenclusions and/or opinion(s) in light of any new facts or
conditions which, unknown to us, existed at any time prior to or at the date of
issuance of this report, but which become known to us subsequent to the date of

this report.

Because market conditions; including economic, social and political factors, change
rapidly and on occasion without warning, the market value estimate expressed as of
the date of this appraisal cannot be relied upon as of any other date except with

further advice from the appraisers and confirmed in writing, Q;

d

%)

&
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VERTEX

L9

L10

L1l

Maps and aetial photographs are included in the Appendix of this report only to act
as aids in interpretation of the appraisal, and no attempt has been made by the

appraisers to verify the accuracy of these,

The use and application of this appraisal report is reserved for Vertex and Global
Transportation Hub and its use is limited to the specific purpose and function stated
within Sections B and C respectively. Liability is expressly denied to any other

person or entity.

Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of
publication. All copyright is reserved to Canadinn Resource Valuation Group
Ine. (CRVG) and is considered confidential as between CRVG, Vertex and
Global Transporiation Hub, However, this report may be disclosed to the
owner of the subject properties for the purpose of negotiations for possible
acquisition/disposition of the lands, however, this disclosure does not void the
copy right and does not permit any further distribution, in hard copy or
digital format, to any other person{s) or entities. Subject to the above this
report ¢annot be disclosed, quoted from or referred to, in whole or in part, or

published in any manaer without the express written consent of CRVG,
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J. CERTIFICATION AS TO THIS APPRAISAL REPORT
1.1 We certify that, subject to the [imiting conditions and assumptions, to the best of our
knowledge and belisf;

the statements of fact containgd in this reporl are teue and correct

the reported analyses, opinions and conclusions are limited only by the reported
assumptions and limiting conditions, and are our personal, impartial and unbiased
professional analyses, opinions and conclusions

we have no present or prospeclive interest or bias in respect of the propetties that are the
subject of this report, and we have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties
involved °

our engagement in and compensation for this assignment are not contingent upon
developing or reporting predetermined results, the amount of our value estimates, or any
particular conclusion stated herein

the reported analyses, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has
been prepared, in conformity with the Code of Professional Ethics and the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Instilute of Canada.

we have the knowledge and experience necessary to complete this assignment
competently _

as of the date of this report the undersigned has fulfilled the requirements of “The
Appraisal Tnstitute of Canada Continuing Professional Development Program® for its
designated members and candidate members

as of the date of this report the undersigned remained licensed as a Real Estate
Appraiser, pursuant to the licensing requirements of the Real Estate Act of the Province
of Alberta

12 24(1)(k) completed a roadside inspection of the subject properties and

performed background research and assisted in the preparation of this report; however, all
opinions expressed herein are those of 24(1)(K)

1.3 24(1)(k) did not inspect the subject properties but for (he preparation of this report

14

15

provided direction to the above consultant, reviewed this report and the background
material where necessary, and was involved in the determination of the “Market Value"
stated herein,

THIS REPORT 1S NOT TO BE COPIED ANIYOR DISTRIBUTED BEYOND
VERTEX AND GLOBAL TRANSPORATATION HUB WITHOUT PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT FROM CANADIAN RESOURCE VALUATION GROUP
INC.

In our opinion, subject to the Limiting conditions and assumptions outlined
herein, the Market Value of the Fee Simple Estates of the herein described subject
properties , as at September 26, 2013,.are;

NW 20-17-20-W2M $65,000 per acre or SEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED NINETY

SEVEN THOUSAND DOLLARS (37,597,000)

SW20-17-20-W2M $51,000 per acre or FOUR MILLION FOUR HUNDRED FIFTY

24(1)(k)

EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,458,000)

- . .

N

e
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AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS APPENDIX IV

NW 20-17-20-W2M

SUBJECT PROPERTY




PHOTOGRAYPHS OF SUBJECT PROPERTIES
(Taken September 26, 2013)

NW 20-17-20-W2M

APPENDIX V (a)

NW CORNER LOOKING SOUTH ALONG CONDIE ROAD RIGIT OF WAY

NE CORNER LOOKING SOUTH




PHOTOGRAPHS OF SUBJECT PROPERTIES APPENDIX V (b)
(Taken September 26, 2013)

NW 20-17-20-W2M |

e

|
‘ !
1

NE CORNER LOOKING WEST DOWN SECONDARY HIGHWAY #730 {

NE COﬁNER LOOKING SQUTHWEST ;




PHOTOGRAPHS OF SUBJECT PROPERTIES APPENDIX V (c)
(Taken September 26, 2013)

SW 20-17-20-W2M

SW CORNER LOOKING NORTHEAST

SW CORNER LOOKING NORTHEAST




PHOTOGRAPHS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY APPENDIX V (d)
(Taken May 16, 2013)

SW 20-17-20-W2M (

TAKEN FROM CENTRAL EAST BOUNDARY OF SE_20—I7—20-W2M LOOKING WEST AT SUBJECT {
PROPERTY NOTE: INTERCHANGE MOUNDS IN BACKGROUND SITUATED ON EAST SIDE OF

SW 20-17-20-W2M

|
{

TAKEN FROM T SWCOER F SwW 20-7-20-W2M - Z NTO DIRT MOUNDS FOR FUTURE
BYPASS ON EAST SIDE OF SW 20-17-20-W2M NOTE (SAME INTERCHANGE MOUNDS)
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APPENDIX VI (a)
Province of Saskatchewan
Land Titles Registry
Title
Title #: 143310012 As of: 28 Aug 2013 09:40:14 |
Title Status: Actlve Last Ameandment Date: 06 Mar 2013 13:30:25.287
Parcel Type: Surface Issued: 26 Fab 2013 16:11:43.820

Parcel Value: $9,818,588.00 CAD
Title Value: $9,818,588.00 CAD Municipallty: CITY OF REGINA
Converted Title: 95R32979 :

Pravious Title and/or Abskract #: 139832927

1012256232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD. is the registered owner of Surface Parcal
#165025414 '

Reference Land Description: NW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 1

This title Is subject to any registered interests set out below and the exceptions, reservations
and Interests mentioned In section 14 of The Land Titles Act, 2000.

Registered Interests;

Interest #:

161986244 CNV Easemant
Valua: N/A
Reg'd: 22 Aug 1978 02:10:43
Interest Register Amendmant
Date: N/A
Interest Assigmment
Date: 18 Jan 2012 10:23:14
Expiry Date: N/A

Holder;

TRANSGAS LIMITED
1000 - 1777 VICTORIA AVENUE
REGINA, SK, Canada 54P 4K5
Cilent #: 100399484
Int. Register #: 101206224

~ Converted Instrument #: 78R42753
Feature #: 100035098

Interast #:

LG1956255 CNV Easement

YValuea: N/A

Reg'd: 05 Oct 1979 02:12:29
Interest Register Amendmant
Date: N/A

Intereet Assignment

hitps://apps.ise.ca/LAND/tps/scripts/ TPSRivStdTtIDl-By Ttl.asp?itlSysKeyld=14331091... 28/08/2013
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Date: N/A
Explry Date: N/A

Holder:

KINDER MORGAN COCHIN ULC

1500 - 1874 SCARTH STREET
REGINA, SK, Canada S4P 4ES

Client #: 100407642

Int. Register #: 101206235
Cornivarted Instrument #: 79R48704
Feature #; 999959

Interast #:
1619256266 Public Utility Easement
Value: N/A
Reg'd: 16 Aug 2010 11:10:20
Interest Register Amendment
Data: N/A
Interest Assignment
Daga: N/A
Explry Date: N/A

Holder:

Patraleum Transmission Company

P.O. Box 11162, Sulte 1100, 1055 West Georgia Strest
Vancouver, Britlsh Columbla, Canada V6E 3R5

Cliant #: 100939901

Int. Registayr #: 116678706

Interest #:
1861956277 Pipelines Act - Easement
Value: N/A
Reg'd: 22 Dec 2010 14:19:31
interest Register Amendment
Date: N/A
Interest Assignment
Date: N/A
Explry Date: N/A

Holdes:

Kinder Morgan Cochin ULC

#68 80 Chippewa Road

Sherwaod Park, Alberta, Canada T8A 4W6
Cliant #: 121164397

Int. Reglster #: 117048078

Interest #:

161956288 Public Utillty Easement
Value: N/A
Reg'd: 07 Feb 2011 11:43:40
Interest Ragister Amendmant
Date: N/A
Interest Assignment
Date: N/A

https://apps.isc.ca/LAND/ps/scripts/TPSRtvStdTHD{-By Ttl.asp?ttiSysKeyld=14331091... 28/08/2013
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Explry Data: N/A

Holder:

Petroleum Transmission Company

P.0O, Box 11162, Sulte 1100, 1055 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, British Columbla, Canada V6E 3R5

Cllent #: 100939901

Int. Register #: 117140442

Intevest #:
161956312 Mortgage
Value: $6,081,725.00 CAD
Reg'd: 26 Feb 2013.16:11:48
Interest Register Amendmaent
Date: N/A
Interest Asslghment
Date: N/A
Expiry Date: N/A
Holder:
CONEXUS CREDIT UNION 2005
£.0. Box 1960 Stn. Main
REGINA, Saskatchewan, Canada S4P 4M1
Client #: 102031591
Int. Register #: 118891841
Interest #:
161956334 Assignment of Rents

Valua: N/A

Reg'd: 26 Feb 2013 16:11:49
Interast Regisier Amendiment
Date: N/A

Interast Assignmant

Data:z N/A

Expiry Date: N/A

Holder:

CONEXUS CREDIT UNION 2006

P.O. Box 1960 Stn. Main

REGINA, Saskatchewan, Canada S4pP 4M1
Client #: 102031591

Iat. Register #: 118991863

Mame Address

Owneai _

101225232 SASIKATCHEWAN LTD. 116 ALBERT STREET REGINA, SK, Canada S4R 2N2
Client #: 128333202

Notes:

Parcel Class Code: Parcel (Generic)

https://apps.isc.ca/LAND/tps/scripts/ TPSRtvStdTHD11-By Ttl.asp?itlSysKeyld=14331091... 28/08/2013




Title Detail Page 4 of 4

hitps://apps.isc.ca/LAND/tps/soripts/ TPSRtvStdTtIDt1-By Tt asptiSysKeyld=14331091... 28/08/2013




Title Detail Page 1 of 2

APPENDIX VI (b)
Province of Saskatchewan
Land Titles Registry
Title
Title #: 143310473 As of: 28 Aug 2013 09:42:58
Title Status: Active Last Amendment Date: 06 Mar 2013 13:30:25.453
Parcel Type: Surface Essued: 26 Feb 2013 16:10:03.930

Parcel Value: $6,264,954,00 CAD

Title Value: $6,264,954.00 CAD Munpicipality: CITY OF REGINA
Converied Title: 99RA25307

Pravious Title and/or Ahstract #: 141187653

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD. is the registered owner of Suiface Parcal
#166005862

Reference Land Description: SW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 2

This title Is subject to any registered Interests set out below and the exceptlons, reservations
and Interests mentioned in section 14 of The Land Titles Act, 2000,

Registered Interests:

Enterest #:

1519255119 CNV Easement
Value: N/A
Reg'd: 29 Aug 1978 01:11:15
Interest Register Amendinant
Date: N/A
Interest Assignment
Date: 18 Jan 2012 10:18:16
Expiry Date: N/A

Holdar:

TRANSGAS LIMITED

1000 - 1777 VICTORIA AVENUE
REGINA, SK, Canada S4P 4K5

Cliant #: 100399484

Int. Register #: 101206246
Conveirted Instrument #: 78R42754
Featura #: 100035098

Interest #:

161955120 CNV Easement

Yaluwe: N/A

Reg'd: 03 Dec 1999 00:47:08
Interast Raglistar Amendmeant
Data: N/A

Interest Assignment

https://apps.isc.ca/LAND/Aps/scripts/ TPSRtvStdTHDH-ByTtl asp?ttiSysKeyId=14331047... 28/08/2013
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
Cllent #: 100006861

Int. Ragistar #: 101206257
Convarted Instrument #: 99RA28285

d {[+-H

Name Address

owner: _

101225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD. 116 ALBERT STREET REGINA, SK, Canada S4R 2N2
Client #: 128333202

Notes:

Parcel Class Code: Parcel (Generic)

https:/fapps.isc.ca/LAND/tps/scripts/TPSRtvStdTHDH-ByTtl.asp?ttlSysKeyld=14331047... 28/08/2013




PROFESSIONAL RESUME APPENDIX VIl

24(1)(k)

Academic Qualifications and Continuving Professional Development (CPD)

24(1)

Memberships

24(1)(k)

Professional Activitics

24(1)(k

24( 1 )( k) CANADIAN RESOURCE VALUATION GROUP INC,




Career Experience

2001 to Present

{991 - 2001

1979 - 1991

1978 - 1979

1974 - 1978

Prior to 1974

Appraisal Assignments

(K

24(1)(K)

24(1)(Kk)

CANADIAN RESOURCE VALUATION GROUP INC,




Selected Stadies / Technical Reports

24(1°

Prepared a number of papers and preseniations involving the following topics:

24(1 )(k) CANADIAN RESOURCE VALUATION GROUP INC.,




APPENDIX VHI
PROFESSIONAL RESUME

24(1)(k)

A, Acendemie Qualifications and Continuing Professional Development

24(1)(k

B. Professional Institute iation Memberships/Licenses

- 24(1)(K)

C. Career Development

24(1

24( 1 )(k) CANATMAN RESOURCE VALUATION GROUP INC,
PPage 10f2




24(1)(k

D. Professional Experience

24(1)(k)

_Consulting Assiznments

24(1)(k

24(1 )(k) CANADIAN RESOURCE YALUATION GROUP INC,

Page 2 afd




Schroeder, Matt GTH
m

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Saturday, January 25, 2014 12:42 PM
To: Baker, Cam ECON

Cc: Richards, Bryan GTH

Subject: 16(1)

Hi Cam,

16(1)

Blair

From: Baker, Cam ECON

Sent: January 7, 2014 4:29 PM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Subject: RE: OC for Marquart Land Acquisition

16(1)

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Tuesday, January 07, 2014 4:26 PM
To: Baker, Cam ECON

Cc: Richards, Bryan GTH

Subject: CC for Marquart Land Acquisition
Imponrtance: High

Hi Cam,
16(1)
Thanks

Blair

BLAIR WAGAR

Chief Operating Officer

GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB
350 - 1777 Victoria Avenue

REGINA SK 54P 4K5

P: 306.798.4602 C: 306.539.2778



F: 306,798.4600
www.thegth.com

SUEw g GLosL
TRANSPORTAT,
BT T 5 ORTATION




Schroeder, Matt GTH

from: Louis Ranger 29(1) Tuesday, December 24,
Sent: 2013 3:27 PM Wagar, Blair GTH

To: Schroeder, Matt GTH; Richards, Bryan GTH
Cc: RE: Update - Marquart Land

Subject:

Thank you and best wishes to you all. | hope most of your gifts are wrapped by now! Louis

----- Original Message-—--

From: Wagar, Blair GTH [mailto:blair.wagar@thegth.com]
Sent: December-24-13 11:37 AM o

To: 'louisranger29({1)’

Cc: Schroeder, Matt GTH; Richards, Bryan GTH

Subject: Fw: Update - Marquart Land

Hi Louis,

As the Chair of the A&F committee we wanted to update you on the outcome from the Government's Dec 18th and
Board's Dec 19th decision to acquire the lands to the East of the GTH. As of 10:00am today we have an accepted offer
to purchase with a closing date set for February 14, 2014. The purchase price is just over $21M for the 203 acres.

Merry Christmas Louis and all the best for 2014,

Cheers,

Blair Wagar
From Wireless Handheld

----- Original Message ~---

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Tuesday, December 24, 2013 10:26 AM

To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Pushor, Laurie ECON; Schroeder, Matt GTH
Subject: Re: Update - Marquart Land

Bryan,

Further to my note below, we have an ACCEPTED Offer to Purchase. | received the signed Offer back from the seller at
10:02am this morning. The next step is to ensure all the proper closing documentation and funds is in place on or
before February 14, 2014,

I've copied Matt into this note so he is up to date on status of this purchase and the timing for the funds for closing.

I will also sent Louis an update as the Chair of the A&F Committee so he's up to date.




Merry Christmas all!

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld

----- Original Message —---

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 10:00 PM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Pushor, Laurie ECON
Subject: Update - Marquart Land

Hi Bryan,

- As per instructions, I've emailed an unconditional Offer to Purchase the two parcels of land between the GTH and the
West Regina Bypass. The seller is a SK numbered company who's President is Anthony Marquart,

The total purchase price is just over $21M for the 203 acres.
17(1)(b)iNiif)

If the offer is accepted, the closing date is set for Februarv 14, 2014.

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld=



Schroeder, Matt GTH

From: Richards, Bryan GTH

Sent: Tuesday, December 24, 2013 10:27 AM

To: Wagar, Blair GTH

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Pushor, Laurie ECON; Schroeder, Matt GTH
Subject: Re: Update - Marquart Land

Thanks Blair. Likewise, the best to you and yours

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Tuesday, December 24, 2013 6:26 AM

To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Pushor, Laurie ECON; Schroeder, Matt GTH
Subject: Re: Update - Marquart Land

Bryan,

Further to my note below, we have an ACCEPTED Offer to Purchase. 1 received the signed Offer back from the seller at 10:02am this
morning. The next step is to ensure all the proper closing documentation and funds is in place on or before February 14, 2014.

I've copied Matt into this note so he is up to date on status of this purchase and the timing for the funds for closing.
I will also sent Louis an update as the Chair of the A&F Committee so he's up to date,

Merry Christias ali!

Blair Wagar
From Wireless Handheld

----- Original Message -----

From: Wagar, Blair GTH

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2013 10:00 PM
To: Richards, Bryan GTH

Co: Baker, Cam ECON; Pushor, Laurie ECON
Subject: Update - Marquart Land

Hi Bryan,

As per instructions, I've emailed an unconditional Offer to Purchase the two parcels of land between the GTH and the West Regina
Bypass. The seller is a SK numbered company who’s President is Anthony Marquart.

The total purchase price is just over $21M for the 203 acres.
17(1{b)iXGH)

If the offer is accepted, the closing date is set for February 14, 2014.




Schroeder, Matt GTH
"""~ " ]|

From: Pushor, Laurie ECON

Sent: Tuesday, December 24, 2013 10:28 AM
To: Wagar, Blair GTH; Richards, Bryan GTH
Cc: Baker, Cam ECON; Schroeder, Matt GTH
Subject: RE: Update - Marquart Land

Great stuff, thanks for all the diligent follow up, enjoy your break, finally!

-----0riginal Message--—--

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

| will also sent Louis an update as the Chair of the A&F Committee so he's up to date.

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

As per instructions, I've emailed an unconditional Offer to Purchase the two parcels of land between the GTH and the
West Regina Bypass. The seller is a SK numbered company who's President is Anthony Marquart.

The total purchase price is just over $21M for the 203 acres.



17(1)(b}i)iii)

If the offer is accepted, the closing date is set for February 14, 2014,

Blair Wagar

From Wireless Handheld




OFFER TO PURCHASE - FARMLAND

The Global Transportation Hub Authority (lieveinaftey “GTHA™)

Address: 305-1777 Victorla Avenue, Regina, Saskatchewan, ¢/o Bryan Richards Phone; 306-787-4842
Fax: 306-798-4600

{called the Purchaser), having inspected the real property, hereinafter described, offer to purchase from

101225232 Saskatchewan Ltd. /o Anthony Marquart
Address: |16 Albert Street, Regins, Saskatechewan, Phone: 2901 Faxz ;qil EI’Q, +7
Cell: 29(1)

(herelnafier the “Vendor™), the following described Property;

Surface Parcel #165025414
" Referonco Land Description: NW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 1 (npprox, 116,86 acies)

Surface Parcel #166005862
Reference Land Description: SW Sec 20 Twp 17 Rge 20 W2 Extension 2 (approx. 87.40 acres)

(MINERALS NOT INCLUDED) .

free and clear of all encumbrances, except as set out in Scheduls “A” — Permilied Encumbrances, for the
sum of $21,038,780.00 Dollars.(8103,000.00 per acre) to be paid as follows:

$5,000.00 to the office of MocKercher LLP, as a deposit to be held pending completion or ofher
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

THIS OFFER. [S SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

I This transaction of purchase and sale is to be completed on or before February 14, 2014, (called the
adjustment date) and subject to payment of the full purchase price, vacant possession will be given to the
Purchaser on that date. In the event the full purchase price is not so paid and the Vendor pives possession
to the Purchaser, the Purchaser will pay interest at the rate of 5% per annum on any portion of the
purchase price not so paid from the date of possession until payment.

2. The Vendor will pay all real property taxes assessed ngainst the Property and relating to the period
ending December 31st, 2013,

3. The Vendor will pay for the prepavation of the Transfer of Title and the Purchaser will pay for the
registration of the Transfer under the Land Titles Act, ~

4. The Purchaser warcants-that he is registered under Division V, Subdivision d of The Act to amend
the Excise Tax Act (Goods and Services Tax Lepislation) and that the Purchaser's Goods and Services Tax
registration number is 107864258 . The Purchaser undertakes to complete and file all necessary Forms
with Canada Customis and Revenue Agency, regarding GST and agrees to indemnify and save harmless
the Vendor for the payiment of GST,

U;\Cur.l||_|un\\'M(iMl\Aurccmcuts\M_nrquart Puselins'td(fer (o Purchase » Funutaid from 104225232 Snsk L (l!luﬁ??ﬁT!-\é.dou «$:1 T/ Dccember 23, 2013

17(1}(a}(b) (i)

17(1)(a)(b) (i}
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5. This offer is not subject to any conditions.
6. The following personal property is included in the sale; N/A

7. The Vendor wascants to the Purchaser that the Vendor has not used or permitted the use of the
Propetty, either now or at any time in the past, for:

(1} the storage and/or demping of;
(2) as alandfill or waste disposal site of;

any deleterious or hazardous substances, nor is the Vendor aware of any deleterous or hazardous
substances migrating onto the Property from adjoining properties, and the Vendor has at all times
complied with existing environinental laws or regulations, or the terms of any perinits or licenses, and has
not or is hot currently incurring liability pursuant to the foregoing laws and regulations, The Vender is not
now or is subject to any remedial order or subject to any concluded, ongoing or pending enforcement
actions or investigations under eny provincial or federal legislation.

The Vendor further warrants that it shafl indemnify and save harmless the Purchaser from any claims or
actions of any kind or nature arising from the Vendors act or omission or failure to comply with any
environmental daw or regulation,

8. Both parties agree to execute promptly, when prepared, any documents required to complete this
transaction.

9. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

10.  This offer is irrevocable by the Purchiaser and open to acceptance by the Vendor up to 12:00 noon
" on December 24, 2013, and if accepted within that period or before revocation shiall constitute a bindiuyg
contract of purchase and sale.

f. If this offer is not accepted, the entire deposit, will be refunded to the Purchaser. If this offer is
accepted and the Purchaser fails o comply with any of the lerms, the deposit will be forfeited to the
Vendor and this Agreement will be void at the Vendor's option and the Purchaser will have no more
interest in the property,

2. This Agreement is binding on the heirs, executors, administiators, or sticcessors of the Vendor and
Purchaser.

13.  The pasties agree that in order to facilitate the exceution of this Agreement, faxed signatures shall
be deemed to be valid signatures.

4. This Agreement shali be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Saskatchewan,

15. It is understood and agreed that there are no other reptesentations, warranties, guarantees, promises
ar agreements other than those containing in this Agreement.

17t Y(e)(b)(i)
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16.  This Agrecment may be executed (by facsimile or otherwise} in any number of counterparts, each of
~which so exccuted shall be deemed to be an original, but all such counterpasts shall together constitute but
one and the same Instrument.

SIGNED by the Purchaser on December23, 2013,

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB AUTHORITY

Pel':j/ %(’" —.Qr;/ |

Bryan Rlc!Effy

ACCEPTANCE
by 4:( e

! hereby ?c‘uag this oggnﬁﬁh all conditions contained thevein and [ certify that | am not a non-resident as
defined by the [ncome Tax Act,

SIGNED by the Vendor on December 24,2013,
101225232 SASKAT, LTD.

Per: -

Purcheser’s Solicitor: ~ David J, Bishop - McKercher LLP

Address: 500-2220 12" Ave., Regina, SK S4P OMS
Phone #; (306) 565-6500
Fax #: (306) 565-6565

Vendor*s Solicitor; QN\) ML LE'—JL

Address: 1]? %L[Eg/’; T 5-:@E£1=éﬁ60\)ﬂ,ﬁ<, SL(Q ANZ
Phone #: Aod, IS4 LHEST

Fax #: Ak SY1 9155
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Schedule “A" - Permitted Bncumbrances

As to Surface Parcel #165025414:
Interest Register #I'.O 1206224 ~ CNV Easement registered August 29, 1978 i favour of Transgas Limited

Interest Register #101206235 — CNV Easement registered October 5, 1979 in favour of Kinder Morgan
Coochin ULC

Interest Register #116678706 — Publio Utility Easement régistered August 16, 2010 In favour of Petrofeum
Transinission Company

Interest Register #117048078 ~ Pipelines Act — Easement registered December 22, 2010 in favour of
Kinder Morgan Cochin ULC

Interest Register #117140442 — Public Utility Easement registered February 7, 2011 in favour of
Petroleum Transmission Company

As to Surface Parcel #166005862;
Interest Register #101206246 - CNV Easement registered August 29, 1978 in favour of Transgas Limited

Interest Register #101206257 - CNV Ensement registered December 3, 1999 in favour of Saskatchewan
Telecommumications




FIRST A G AGREER T

‘THIS AGREEMENT made effective the_VHaday of January, 2014,

AMONG:
THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB AUTHORITY
(hereinafter reforred to as “GTHA" or “Purchaser™)

-and-

161225232 SASKATCHEWAN LTD.
{hereinafter referred to as the “Vendor™)

WHERBAS the Pasties enfered into a Offer to Purchase Farmland made by the Purchaser on December
23, 2013, ond acoepted by (he Vondor on December 24, 2013 (the “Original Agreement”);

AND WHERBAS the Parties hoth wish to amend the specific terms of the Oviginal Agreement;
AND WHEREAS, this Ageement is referved to as the “First Amending Agreement”;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, conditions and agreements herein and for
other goods and valuable congideration, the Partics agres the Original Agreement is amnended as follows:

. ‘The Purchaser's Goods and Services Tax registration number is 841586431RT000L.
2. The transaction of purchase and sale is to be completed on or before March 3, 2014.

3,  The Parties hereby agree that all the other definitions, ferms and conditions contained in the
Original Agresment, wnlees specifically amended by this First Ameuding Agreement, remains in
full force and effect,

4, The Parties hereby agree that any future amendments o either the Original Agrecment or the First
Amending Agreement must be agreed to in writing.

5. This First Amending Agreement may be executed (by facsimile or otherwise) in any numher of
counter-parts, each of which so exesuted shall deemed to be mn oviginel, but afl counter-parts shall
constitute one and the same insirument,

6. The Original Agreement is hereby modilied in all respects necessarvy to give etfect 1n the provision
of this First Amending Apreement. The Orviginul Agreement, u3 amended by this First Amending
Agreement, and all covenants, provisos, powers, matters and things whatsosver thevein are herehy
ratified and confivimed and declared to be in fiall foroe and cffect and shalt bind the paities hereto.

7.  Bachparly agrees that it will execute such further agreements or docuiments as may be required or
contemplated by this First Amending Agreement fo permit full compliance with the terms of the
Fivst Amending Agresment and its purpose and intent,

8. This First Amending Agreentent shall enuvre to the benetit of and be binding wpon the purties hereto
and their respective swccessors and permitted assipns.




IN WITNESS W the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first
above written, .

, ‘5»3“' DF!Tm

o %

THE GLOBAL TRANSPORTATION HUB
AUTHORITY

{cls)

(v/s) Per;

T TNEACALT
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